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Milestones +[blEa

2012

Received the “10
Consecutive Years
Caring Company Logo”
in recognition of its
sustainable commitment

/ T
caringcompany =’

Awarded by The Hong Kong
f=

in the aspects of Caring for the Community,
Caring for the Employees and Caring for the
Environment over the past 10 years.
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CSR campaign will continue throughout 2012, for which a
series of charity events will be organised for needy people
in “5 Districts” in Hong Kong. The beneficiaries include
the elderly in Kowloon East; primary school students in
Kowloon West, disabilities in New Territories East, hospital
patients in Hong Kong Island and youngsters in New
Territories West.
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2000

on KMB buses.

B+ EERR R

2011

To mark our 10th Anniversary, we partnered with
Agency for Volunteer Service to organise a sustainable
community care initiative called “Our Hearts as One”
on 5 November 2011 at Sky 100, a series of social
welfare programmes will be launched to give back to
the community.
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RoadShow
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HK Stock Exchange .00 “000"
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RoadShow listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
BABEREHARSMARDAIRLET -

2001

RoadShow and Samsung Electronics completed
the world’s largest MMOB project to equip
2,400 buses with 9,600 LCD monitors.

%ET@A: %TDEXEEETFKE/]UILEQ;I%HE/\//L
RoadShow commenced the MMOB ZHETE  FE2,400 B+ FZHE 9 600K EE
business with audio visual programmes N
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BUS-BODY was launched when KMB granted
RoadShow a bus exterior advertising licence
agreement covering exclusive rights to market,
RoadShow began enhancing its media platform display and maintain advertisements on its transit
by installing new BUS-TV systems with 3G vehicles exterior spaces.
transmission capabilities. These systems with 3G
transmission capabilities enabled the broadcasting
of timely news and other valuable information.
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BUS-BODYR KBRS NEREELHHINTE
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The Group was granted an exclusive licence by KMB to d

conduct media sales agency business on selected bus
shelters on KMB routes. | R—
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IN-BUS was inaugurated in February, RoadShow
obtained an exclusive licence from KMB for the
soliciting of advertising for the interior advertising
spaces of all KMB transit vehicles.

IN-BUSIR— AR EZIS -
BHE RENERESHNRIESE
Sy

2009

BNBESNAERTBR
TES

RoadShow received the Championship Award in the 15th (2003)
Hong Kong Printing Awards in the Annual Report category.
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For the third consecutive year, RoadShow was selected as one of the
top 500 Chinese enterprises by Yazhou Zhoukan news magazine.

BEE-FRE<TMETSHEMEN [H

2003

XEERG 500 HETTHS | o

Over 4,700 buses have been equipped with
MMOB system and a total of about 20,000

LCD monitors, reaching 3.6 million audience
everyday.

# iR 4,7008 B+ B % % 4920,000 #7 &
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BEE R

2006

The end of 2008, the Group began installing
new TV monitors in buses to improve display
quality and the overall impact of the medium.
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2005

RoadShow equipped MMOB
systems on additional buses to
total 4,000 transit vehicles with
16,000 LCD monitors, reaching
3 million audience daily.
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In 2011, a very special year,
we celebrated the 10th
Anniversary of the Group with
a series of community welfare
programmes to give back to
our community.
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On 5 November 2011, we launched the programme
“Our Hearts as One” at SKY 100, in which we
partnered with the Agency for Volunteer Service to
organise a major series of welfare activities. The
programme runs through 2012 and aims to raise
people’s concern for needy people in our community
and create a harmonious society. Chief Secretary for
Administration Mr. Stephen Lam was our guest of
honour at the programme launch ceremony. A total
of 200 guests from less fortunate families with their
children were also invited to join the event.

As a continuing effort following the Group’s 10th
Anniversary, we are further fortifying our positioning as
“An Integrated Media Group For Hong Kong People”.

As such, we will invest in nurturing our relationship
with the community and further strengthening the
social involvement of the media group.

This will be realised through sustained efforts in
channeling resources from the commercial sectors to
those in need in society, leading the social cause of
supporting community and volunteer services, caring
for others as well as protecting the environment.

We will lock arms with various strategic partners in
creating a harmonious and better society on a long
term basis.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
EEHRE

In 2011, a very special year, we celebrated the 10th Anniversary
of the Group with a series of community welfare programmes to
give back to our community. We will continue our Corporate Social
Responsibility initiatives throughout 2012.

On 5 November 2011, we launched the programme “Our Hearts as
One”, in which we partnered with the Agency for Volunteer Service
to organise a major series of welfare activities. The programme runs
through 2012 and aims to raise people’s concern for needy people in
our community and create a harmonious society. Starting in February
2012, a series of charity events will be organised for underprivileged
people in five districts: the elderly in Kowloon East; primary school
students in Kowloon West; disabled people in New Territories East;
youngsters in New Territories West; and hospital patients on Hong
Kong Island.

RoadShow Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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| am pleased to report our significant
progress in 2011. Operating profit recorded
substantial growth, proving the successful
improvement of the Group’s core competencies.

EARREREEEN -—B——FRENEARRE T
ERASEAERE BRAEERAROEBREER
SEEL R

Turning to the Group’s business performance, | am pleased to
report our significant progress in 2011. Operating profit recorded
substantial growth, proving the successful improvement of the
Group’s core competencies in the BUS-TV, BUS-BODY, IN-BUS and
BUS SHELTERS platforms. In fact, all our media platforms were well
received by advertisers and agencies, our key customers.

Entering the year on a strong financial note, with healthy cash flow
and zero debt, we succeeded in expanding our market share, the
BUS-BODY platform spearheading the Group’s growth amid keen
competition.

Our unique, integrated media platform comprising BUS-TV, IN-BUS
and BUS-BODY has enabled the Company to grow by securing
more long-term contracts by helping advertisers and agencies
achieve their marketing goals. We have further fortified our
competitive edge in out-of-home media and advertising through
co-management of bus shelter advertising.

Further, the upgrading of our MMOB system with new broadcast
technology has resulted in enthusiastic market acceptance of
BUS-TV.

Meanwhile, our unlisted Mainland investment, AdSociety Daye
Advertising Company Limited (“AdSociety Daye”), faced serious
challenges in the year under review. Apart from facing fierce
competition in the Mainland television content industry, AdSociety
Daye’s operations took a hit when property developers slashed
adspend, following national policies to curb property prices. On
top of unstable adspend, stricter control on commercial breaks in
TV dramas triggered structural changes in the content provision
business. In the circumstances, AdSociety Daye was forced to
raise finance to meet tight cash flow, combat serious competition
to get advertising contracts and struggle to collect payments, while
slashing costs on programme production.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERBE

The dilution of the Group’s equity in AdSociety Daye to 32.7%

and the consequent changes in the board of AdSociety Daye in
September 2009 have resulted in us no longer having significant
influence over AdSociety Daye’s current and future operations. We
have, therefore, further re-evaluated our position in the investment,
after the write-down in mid-2010. During the interim period ended
30 June 2011, the agreements in relation to the Group’s loans to
AdSociety Daye expired and AdSociety Daye not only defaulted in

the repayment of these loans when due but was also unable to offer

any credible alternative repayment schedule. In view of the highly
uncertain recoverability of these amounts, the Group recognised a

further impairment loss of approximately HK$109,606,000 during the

interim period, which represents a full and final provision against the
entire amount invested in and loans to AdSociety Daye.

We are taking all possible steps to recover the remaining value of
our investment in AdSociety Daye, including but not limited to legal
action. We will continue to pursue the matter vigorously.

Results for the year

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group recorded total
operating revenue of HK$397.3 million, representing an increase of
approximately 11% over that of the previous year. Loss attributable
to equity shareholders of the Company was reduced to HK$48.6
million in 2011, compared with a loss of HK$61.6 million in 2010.
The loss was mainly attributable to an impairment loss of HK$109.6
million (2010: HK$110.0 million) made on our investment in and
loans to AdSociety Daye. Excluding the effect of the one-off and
non-cash impairment loss, the core business of the Group remains
strong and the profits attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company for 2011 was HK$61.0 million, an increase of 26% or
HK$12.6 million over the HK$48.4 million recorded in 2010.

Dividends

The Directors recommend a final dividend of HK6.11 cents per
share for the year ended 31 December 2011. (2010: HK4.85 cents
per share). This represents a pay-out ratio of 100% of the current
year’s profit (excluding the impairment loss on other non-current
financial assets of HK$109.6 million).

RoadShow Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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Prospects

The dark economic cloud from Europe overshadowing Asia is sure
to affect the industry in the coming financial year. Towards the
second half of the year, competition is bound to become more
aggressive, with more players in the form of new free TV licensees.

We therefore envisage a period of consolidation in the industry over
the coming year. With our healthy financial position, the Group is
well-positioned to capitalise on new opportunities to enhance long-

term growth. While strengthening our core competencies, we remain

cautiously optimistic, aiming for reasonable growth over last year.

Appreciation

We would not have been able to achieve and sustain our success
without the support of our people. On behalf of the Board, | thank
all of them for their valuable contribution to our business. We are

confident of their continued support in the future.

Special thanks are due to the Audit Committee, chaired by Dr Eric
Li Ka Cheung and comprising Dr Carlye Wai-Ling Tsui, Ms Winnie
Ng, Mr Yung Wing Chung and Professor Stephen Cheung Yan
Leung as members, for their painstaking work.

| also sincerely appreciate the valuable contributions of my fellow
directors, in particular Managing Director Mr Alex Mo Tik Sang, to
the Group’s steady progress.

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak

Chairman
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MANAGING DIRECTOR’S REPORT
EEARERE

We have achieved significant
growth in operating profits through the
BUS-BODY platform as well as its synergy
with all other business segments.
BRABNETESEBERHEBBEF
B MEREBIBNHBERR S KE
mABFH REER-

2011 was a strong year marked by continuous progress on all business
fronts. With exceptional performance by the BUS-BODY segment, we
have achieved significant growth in operating profits through this unique
platform as well as its synergy with all other business segments.

In Hong Kong, we made good progress developing our integrated out-
of-home (“OOH”") media platform, having entered into an exclusive
BUS-BODY Media Agency arrangement with The Kowloon Motor Bus
Company (1933) Limited (“KMB”) in the previous financial year. By

further integrating our BUS-TV, BUS-BODY and IN-BUS media platforms,

we gained and retained the loyalty of leading brands and advertisers.

The BUS-BODY segment is well-received by advertisers and marketers,
due not only to the size of the KMB bus fleet (67% of the total number
of franchised buses in Hong Kong), but also its extensive coverage

of the growing population of the Northern New Territories in its latest
commercial and community development. As a result, bulk deal group
contracts are being signed with renowned brands in the territory, further
strengthening the performance in our core competencies.

Each operating division has worked hard to build its component of the

media platforms, and each has made strong contribution to overall profit.

Their efforts resulted in another year of strong performance in our core
business.

RoadShow Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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Consequently, RoadShow’s consolidated net media revenue for 2011
grew by 14.2% to HK$371.5 million compared to HK$325.2 million for
2010. Our operating profit recorded a 29.6% growth, reaching HK$79.2
million for the year (2010: HK$61.1 million) before non-recurring
impairments were made.

The fundamentals underpinning the Mainland’s TV content provision
industry remained fragile in 2011. This affected the Group’s investment
in AdSociety Daye. Sharp declines in revenues, extremely keen
competition and soaring costs of content production were compounded
by tightened government policy over the reduction of commercial breaks
within a TV Drama.

In the middle of 2010, in anticipation of the above-mentioned scenario,
we responded quickly by making an impairment loss of HK$110.0
million, writing down half of the value of our investment in AdSociety
Daye. With worsened development during the fiscal year, we have gone
further to write down another HK$109.6 million, as the Group was no
longer holding a position of influence in the investment and was unable
to stabilise its financial performance. The provision made is non-recurring
and non-cash in nature, and does not have any adverse impact on the
Group’s core competencies.

Meanwhile, management has commenced all possible actions to recover
the maximum value of the investment, including but not limited to legal
action.

Looking Forward

As the Chairman has noted, the dark clouds of worldwide economic
downturn has started to impact Asia and the resulting consolidation
in the industry will be the key issue the Group has to deal with for the
coming year.

In responding to a possible steep decline of advertising spending, the
Group has already embarked on a series of programmes to capture
advertisers’ commitment and budget for the year. Besides, large scale
content enhancements are being made in order to raise the media
impact of BUS-TV amongst the audience.

As a continuing effort following the Group’s 10th Anniversary, we are
further fortifying our positioning as “An Integrated Media Group For
Hong Kong People”. As such, we will invest in nurturing our relationship
with the community and further strengthening the social involvement of
the media group.

This will be realised through sustained efforts in channeling resources
from the commercial sectors to those in need in society, leading the
social cause of supporting community and volunteer services, caring

for others as well as protecting the environment. We will lock arms with
various strategic partners in creating a harmonious and better society on
a long term basis.

The Group’s strong progress is due to the wise guidance of our Board
of Directors and the dedicated professionalism of our staff. | extend my
sincere appreciation to all of them.

Alex MO Tik Sang

Managing Director
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We create and deliver quality and interesting
infotainment content about our community through

our BUS-TV Media which reaches over 3.6 million
passengers daily.

Driven
Dy
knowledge







OPERATIONAL REVIEW
E Sy 6]

We have achieved significant
growth in operating profits. 5

BRBR-E——ERERD S LB L
B ELE

BUS-TV

The RoadShow Group’s (“RoadShow’s” or “the Group’s”)
BUS-TV (“MMOB?”) business specialises in the broadcasting of
tailor-made programmes and advertisements on buses. Its other
expertise spans programme content production and sourcing, as
well as the marketing and selling of airtime.

The Group’s MMOB arm currently operates some 20,000 LCD
units, which broadcast a wide variety of programmes, news and
infotainment to an approximately 3,600,000-bus passengers daily
across Hong Kong. As of March 2012, approximately 4,800 buses
from KMB, Citybus and New World First Bus enriched commuters’
daily journeys with BUS-TV content.

In 2010, RoadShow began enhancing its media platform by installing
new MMOB systems with 3G transmission capabilities. These
systems are fast becoming a ‘must-have’ media buy for brand
managers who place a premium on easy penetration of — and gross
impact across — a large daily audience base. The enhancement
project has been completed in 2011. With initial run-in of the system
has already achieving growth, more add-ons including new features,
such as News ticker, Editorials, UV Index, Hang Seng Index via 3G;
Time Zone specific; location specific and screen segmentation, etc,
ensure solid growth.

RoadShow Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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Unique Programming

RoadShow painstakingly creates and sources highly relevant
BUS-TV content spanning the widest possible range through our
six trunks, namely News Focus, Entertainment, Lifestyle, Art &
Culture, Green Life and Finance. Uniquely creative, informative and
entertaining, this coverage continues to command the interest and
awareness of around 3,600,000 bus passengers across Hong Kong
every day.

In 2011, the Group worked hard to stay ahead of its competitors by
providing a wide range of special interest programmes such as:

e Broadcasting timely news and other valuable information through
onscreen news tickers on 3G-enabled BUS-TVs.

e Keeping commuters abreast of leading current affairs issues
through our popular ‘RoadShow Forum’ magazine programme.
Highlighting Hong Kong’s current affairs and community issues,
each edition showcases fascinating discussions of individual
topics by prominent guests with widely differing viewpoints.

LIS
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW
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e Enriching Hongkongers’ artistic and cultural interests ahead BamNEXREMRERE  WHSDE

of the opening of the West Kowloon Cultural District. Our BXEER  [RoadShow X #E & | kX
subsequent ‘RoadShow Stage’ and ‘Dramatic Criticism’ series M | Z-—RIGEARERHEEHEX
provided passengers with informative and stimulating insights into b~ M RMP e B REMRRA -
both arts and culture as well as cultural events in town. . EEGMEALABSAALIGE @ B3%
e Famous celebrities in Hong Kong, China and Taiwan are invited APIE AR A TAF o
to talk about their life and work on the ‘4L A%E’ signature o (AT AR o
programme
. , , o BMARKMAFIRLARBEFHERRR
. Erogrammes on the ‘lifestyle’ trunk cover talk-of-the-town social Q% AEBAMEMEHEEE  AEE
osues. B B B R T 16 5 = 8 —
e With various government departments and private bodies K WMETINESE  FEESERERA
involved in the promotion of environmental protection. With the PHECNEFEREECEENEZ N -
success of past two year, the Group continues the production UERBET—RENAEBRRRLETE
and broadcasting of the special programme ‘Beyond 16 Degrees RIK—EHZERE - &5 [MT16F ]
— Part lll Save the Earth. Save Our Children.’. Our ultimate aim HErE  ABRBRRZEEZRRER
of this series was to update passengers about the disastrous HES o

consequences of global warming and the importance of green
living, as well as educating the future generation about sound
environmental practices, instill good habits and ensure that our
planet is preserved for years to come. To date, ‘Beyond 16
Degrees’ has received excellent feedback from both the public
and various influential environmental bodies.
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e |[aunched in 2011, the ‘Weekly Financial Forecast’ is a
programme under Finance Trunk covering breaking news on
finance and investment markets.

Throughout 2012, RoadShow will continue to enrich and diversify
its programme content. In doing so, we will significantly increase
both our in-house production and our collaborations with local
and regional content providers. We also plan to boost our ratio
of branded content and serve as promoters’ media partner for
concerts, movies and other high-impact mainstream events.
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We constantly improve our innovative suite of
integrated products to offer clients platforms that
cost-effectively maximize exposure.

BUS-TV BUS-BODY IN-BUS ' ol Content

i W am PPy o faes Lk

Integration
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BUS-BODY

Launched in November 2009, BUS-BODY was yet another
pioneering business initiative for the Group. The bus exterior
advertising arrangement with KMB succeeded in further speeding
this platform’s business momentum and market share. Currently,
advertising on the exteriors of around 3,500 franchised buses in
Hong Kong is managed by RoadShow.

The BUS-BODY concept enables clients to effectively highlight

various brand attributes through multi-dimensional, fusion displays.

Like giant moving billboards shuttling around Hong Kong Island,
Kowloon and the New Territories, this moving medium has opened
up new space for creative, eye-catching presentations to attract
the public and passengers. The prestige medium allows clients to
extend audience reach.

IN-BUS

Having first appeared on buses in February 2009, IN-BUS has
proved to be a lucrative source of revenue for the Group. In
leveraging both interior decorations and BUS-TV’s customised

TV segments, this platform offers a genuinely ‘Win-Win’ situation
for local advertisers looking for a creative showcase capable of
achieving synergy with other RoadShow platforms. Ultimately, no
other media buy makes it easier to satisfy brand managers’ desire

to ‘maximise eyeball management while minimising eyeball conflict’.

mgqlhh‘. ll L}

et EEELL
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BUS SHELTERS

Operated with JCDecaux Cityscape Limited this arm of our
business first began operations in 2001. In 2008, the Group was
awarded an exclusive media sales agency and management rights
licence in respect of selected bus shelters across Hong Kong. The
arrangement will remain in force until 31 July 2012.

In 2011, BUS SHELTERS activities contributed not only both
revenue and profits, but also significantly enhanced our market
share and status as probably Hong Kong’s premier out-of-home
(“OOH”) advertising specialist.

Integrated Marketing Services

The year under review saw a phenomenal increase in demand for
this area of our service. Key customers include not only advertisers,
event management and production specialists, but also creative
development and public relations professionals, etc.

As a result, RoadShow continues to remain better positioned to
meet agencies and advertisers’ integrated media and marketing
services needs.
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As a caring company, RoadShow makes considerable
efforts to help the less privileged in our community,
while encouraging our business partners to engage

in corporate social responsibility to build a happy,
harmonious society.

Connected
through

hearts
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The Community

RoadShow is recognised for our commitment to give back to

the community. It drives our pursuit of sustainable corporate
development. We organized a major good corporate citizenship
initiative called “Our Hearts as One”. 200 less fortunate families
with their children were invited to join the event on 5 November
2011 at SKY 100. Starting from February 2012, a series of charity
events will be organised for needy people in “5 Districts” in Hong
Kong. The beneficiaries include the elderly in Kowloon East; primary
school students in Kowloon West, disabilities in New Territories
East, hospital patients in Hong Kong Island and youngsters in New
Territories West.

2011 was the ninth consecutive year the Group has been honoured
with a coveted Caring Company Award from the Hong Kong Council
of Social Services. In delivering on our promise of giving back to
the local community, we enthusiastically support many non-profit
organisations through the pro-bono broadcasting of community
service messages and charity appeals via BUS-TV and BUS-BODY.
In 2011, the various worthy causes whose appeals we aired
included Hong Kong Yogathan by the Hong Kong Breast Cancer
Foundation. We also donated free air time and/or free media space
to the following:

RoadShow Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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e 2011 Hong Kong Volunteer Award Presentation Ceremony o 2011 EHBEH LRATRE
e HSBC Pok Oi Cycle for Millions 2011 s ELBEEEFET201

e MEAGRBNEBEESHHF NN 2011
o HEBEFWHERMNEMEKXE

s ¥EESE

e Hong Kong Dance Marathon 2011 by Suicide Prevention Services

e a Life Fama Tour by The Hongkong Federation of Youth Groups

e Aide et Action o HEEHE
e Social Welfare Department o EBIIERER
e Central Office for Volunteer Service REBTHEBMETIRAESIRAEZEINGE

B flmAanel AnkenA I RIELESE
HHET20M1]E - E-Z—Z—F K~£EH
HEBESHARYE  BEEEMERAE L
B 3OKAREHENAEAR

Our people are also encouraged to participate in leading charity and
fund-raising events such as the Community Chest’s ‘Dress Special
Day’ and HSBC Pok Oi Cycle for Millions 2011. In 2012, we will
continue to try and be a better corporate citizen by supporting civic
education and producing informative and educational programmes.

ERANER

People AEBSETERRE S EEESHERS AN

BN CHEABRSEED -BAOARBEATY
Our people’s ability to anticipate and respond to advertisers’ needs AEEETHEE NN EAEE  F T ——

has always given RoadShow much of its competitive edge. In doing E . KEBEBRIBE AL RIEMHEY =27
our utmost to develop and retain talented individuals, we are doing TABMEEENE o EEAK A EEES
everything possible to underline our leadership status. During 2011, FEREIASGOES - FTEL - DERR
we not only recruited high caliber talents but also enhanced the WK o

quality and efficiency of our existing talent through staff training.

In the coming months and years, we will continue to nurture a

culture that will ensure our people can confidently overcome every

challenge.
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As a company that cares for our environment,
RoadShow not only follows a “green” philosophy but
also makes considerable efforts to educate our
community about eco-friendly living.

Sustainable
future
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Green Programmes and Events RRFEAREE
As a company that cares for our environment, RoadShow not only ER—BEIERRNA BB ERE
follows a ‘green’ philosophy but also makes considerable efforts [FEES] EFEBHEE ’éﬁﬁ REFRE B A4
to educate our community about eco-friendly living via its media SRREHLRREE °
programmes and special events.
[ EEEISHE B
Programmes presented via our ‘Green Life’ Trunk include the
following:- o [RHE{E-—NTI16EFE—RFE_8E|LE
RZTENGFRZT— fEHX’EEETﬁXIJJ
e Following the success of ‘Global Warming — Beyond 16 Degrees B RABBERE HEBXXA
Part | and Part I’ in 2009 and 2010 respectively, RoadShow RERESENRRERBEESE %Eiﬁ :
again joined hands with the Hong Kong Observatory, WWF and FRARIF  BATEEBR B4t
Po Leung Kuk to introduce Part Il of the programme to get HIRIE o

everyone’s support to make a cleaner, greener environment.

o ERRBAYAndoxBE[HZENAR K

e Famous character Andox gave green tips on RoadShow’s ‘4% @ ARBEHRGEEEF/ DL -
MEF: programme. « RMAESREEHIVETAGE K
e We worked with the Environmental Protection Department to EEERETERNBRHER - ZERK
produce a TV programme about recycling waste electrical and RHHBEMNgEBEES MM EERE -
electronic equipment. Our producers visited the United Kingdom ZEHERH o

and Taiwan to make an educational programme on how they deal
with the problem.

28 RoadShow Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011



MT-16  Dart N

T 16 E Part Il

Following are the highlights of our ‘green’ events:

e To promote waste reduction at source, waste recycling and
turn waste into energy-generating resources, we launched the
‘Change Waste to Gold’ programme in March 2011. Guests
shared green tips from their daily lives and took part in various
games to encourage environmental protection.

e The Hong Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence is one of
the most prestigious award schemes in Hong Kong to encourage
organisations to adopt green practices. RoadShow was honoured
to be appointed Event Management Consultant for the scheme.

e RoadShow worked with the Sha Tin District Council to organise
several events and promotions for {KHRIRIREYD A .

We will continue to do our best to promote environmental
protection.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

For The Year Ended 31 December
BE+-A=+t—HLFE

Unit

N 2011 2010
By
Total operating revenue HKS$ million
o N et e — 7. 356.4
RE A 45 B A& 397.3
Loss before taxation HK$ million
s o e e — 30.9 48.9
BRI A& B EET
Loss attributable to equity shareholders HK$ million 48.6 616
IR (G E 1R BERETT ' '
Loss before interest, tax, depreciation and .
amortisation expenses iﬁ\,}ﬁgﬂﬂ@ 11.6 32.8
MBRFS - BIE - 8 RN E RS B H S
Basic (loss)/earnings per share HK cents
— o e . 4.88 6.18
SREA(EE), B S5 (+.88) (618
e Arising from the Group’s operations HK cents 6.11 485
EEEAEEREER 7B Il ; '
¢ Arising from impairment loss of other
non-current financial assets :!?mcents (10.99) (11.03)
EFBEMERDEHEERERRBE !
Proposed final dividend per share HK cents 6.11 485
BRIk ETRRHRE Al ; '
Total equity attributable to equity .
shareholders AR fmillor 630.5  728.2
BEBEET

AR G R s AR R

RoadShow Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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The Group manages its business by the following geographical areas:

Hong Kong

. Provision of media sales and management services
Mainland China : Provision of media advertising agency services and

design and production of advertisements

Revenue from external
customers

Other revenue and other
net income/(loss)

Reportable segment
revenue

Reportable segment
profit/(loss)

Unallocated other revenue
and other net income

Unallocated head office
and corporate expenses

Loss before taxation

Income tax

Loss for the year

Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the
Company

Non-controlling interests

Loss for the year

KB IMRE P HIMA

Hib WA R E A
Wz, (B518)F8

2/ EBYA

ERSHBF
(B18)

Ao EAMBA R
H i a5 H 58

ADBEMER N
TEH

BRI AR 1R

PSR

REEBR

EiRIR

ARABEER

FEE IR

REEBR

w8
o E AR
sRBUE

Hong Kong Mainland China
BB Hh B K e

2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$ 000
BT BETT BETR BETT
870,556 324,060 935 1,171
9,724 9,266 (138) 1,866
380,280 333,326 797 3,037
82,308 59,206 = (118,531) (115,893)

BABERERAT

AEBRATHRERHLER

CREREBHEEREERS
CRHERESAEREMESR

Total
/\VL‘/‘E
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BETIT A¥TT
371,491 325,231
9,586 11,132
381,077 336,363
(31,223) (56,687)
16,251 20,081
(15,909) (12,280)
(30,881)  (48,886)
(12,863) (8,269)
(43,744) (57,155)
(48,637) (61,641)
4,893 4,486
(43,744)  (57,155)
—E——FFR
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Results

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group reported total
operating revenue of HK$397.3 million, representing an increase of
approximately 11% over the previous year. Loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company was HK$48.6 million in 2011, compared
with a loss of HK$61.6 million in 2010. The loss attributable to

equity shareholders is mainly due to the non-cash impairment

loss of the unlisted available-for-sale equity interest in AdSociety
Daye Advertising Company Limited (“AdSociety Daye”) amounting

to HK$109.6 million (2010: HK$110.0 million). However, the core
business of the Group remains strong and the profits attributable to
equity shareholders of the Company, before the effect of impairment
loss of other non-current financial assets amounting to HK$109.6
million (2010: HK$110.0 million), was approximately HK$61.0 million,
representing an increase of approximately 26% compared to HK$48.4
million in previous year. The Group continues to maintain a strong
financial position with bank deposits and cash of HK$428.1 million as
at 31 December 2011 (2010: HK$383.5 million).

Operating Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group reported total
operating revenue of HK$397.3 million, of which HK$371.5 million
was from media sales services and HK$25.8 million was from other
revenue and other net income. Revenue from media sales services
generated from the Hong Kong and the Mainland China operations
accounted for approximately 99.7% and 0.3% of the Group’s total
turnover respectively. Revenue generated from the media sales
services of the Hong Kong operations was HK$370.6 million in
2011 compared with HK$324.1 million in 2010, representing a 14%
increase mainly contributed by the BUS-BODY advertising business
which commenced in November 2009, while that generated from our
Mainland China operations was HK$0.9 million in 2011 compared
with HK$1.2 million in 2010.

Operating Expenses

The Group’s operating expenses increased by HK$22.8 million, from
HK$295.3 million in 2010 to HK$318.1 million in 2011 as a result of
the growth of our business.

Dividends

The Directors recommend a final dividend of HK6.11 cents per share
(2010: HK4.85 cents per share) for the year ended 31 December
2011. This represents a pay-out ratio of 100% of the current year’s
operating profit.

RoadShow Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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Cash Flow

In 2011, the cash generated from the operations of the Group

was HK$82.6 million (2010: HK$63.8 million). Payment for capital
expenditure in 2011 amounted to HK$27.1 million (2010: HK$112.1
million). The consolidated cash flow statement of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2011 is set out on pages 76 to 77 of this
Annual Report.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

At 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group did not have any

bank borrowings. The gearing ratio, representing the ratio of bank
borrowings to the total share capital and reserves of the Group was
0% at 31 December 2011 and 2010.

The Group had stand-by banking facilities totalling HK$50.0 million at
31 December 2011 and 2010.

At 31 December 2011, the Group had net current assets of HK$491.5
million (2010: HK$459.9 million) and total assets of HK$766.1 million
(2010: HK$806.8 million).

Charge on Assets

At 31 December 2011 and 2010, bank deposits of HK$41.2 million
were pledged to secure certain bank guarantees issued by the
subsidiaries of the Company to fellow subsidiaries regarding their due
performance and payment under certain licence agreements between
the subsidiaries of the Company and the fellow subsidiaries.

At 31 December 2010, included in other non-current financial assets,
the Group provided a loan to AdSociety Daye through a designated
deposit/loan arrangement where a subsidiary of the Company placed
a pledged deposit of RMB22,858,000 with a bank in the Peoples’
Republic of China (“PRC”) and the bank on lent the proceeds to
AdSociety Daye. The pledged deposit was released during the year
ended 31 December 2011.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates and Related
Hedges

The Group’s monetary assets and transactions are principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and Renminbi. During
the year, there was no material fluctuation in the exchange rates of
Hong Kong dollars and US dollars and of Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi. The Group did not engage in any derivatives activities and
did not commit to any financial instruments to hedge its balance
sheet exposure in 2011. At 31 December 2011 and 2010, the
unutilised amount of proceeds from the Global Offering and the
exercise of an over-allotment option by the underwriters on 18 July
2001 were placed into bank deposits.
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Capital Expenditures and Capital Commitments

Capital expenditures incurred by the Group during 2011 amounted
to HK$66.5 million (2010: HK$1.3 million). The breakdown of capital
expenditures incurred is shown in note 13 to the financial statements
on pages 71 to 141 of this Annual Report.

Capital commitments outstanding and not provided for in the
financial statements of the Group at 31 December 2011 amounted
to HK$111.0 million (2010: HK$141.2 million), which is mainly for the
upgrade of the existing MMOB system for the BUS-TV advertising
business. The commitments are to be financed by bank borrowings
and/or internal resources of the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities at 31
December 2011 and 2010.

Accounting Standards and Policies

The financial statements set out on pages 71 to 141 have been
prepared in accordance with the applicable disclosure requirements of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

At 31 December 2011, the Group had 115 full-time employees in
Hong Kong and 2 full-time employees in Mainland China.

The Group offers a comprehensive and competitive remuneration
and benefits package to all its employees. In addition, it offers a
performance bonus scheme to its senior staff based on achievement
of business objectives and a sales commission scheme to its sales
team based on achievement of advertising revenue targets. The
Group has adopted a provident fund scheme for its employees

in Hong Kong as required under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance and participated in employee pension schemes
organised and governed by the relevant local governments for its
employees in Mainland China.
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Connected Transactions

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group had the following
continuing connected transactions, details of which are set out below.

BEXS

i) The Group entered into the transactions with the connected i)
parties in 2009 as set out below. The transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions which are subject to reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The details
of the transactions listed below were disclosed in the circular of
the Company dated 17 September 2009, and were approved at
the special general meeting by the independent shareholders on

9 October 2009.

Name of

connected parties

BEALTER

1) The Kowloon Motor Bus
Company (1933) Limited
(“KMB”) (Note 1)

NEEL(—N==
BRAB((AE]D
(FizE1)
2) KMB
e
Notes:

1. KMB is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Transport International

Holdings Limited (“TIH?).

2. RoadShow Media is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Company.

Nature of transactions
REME

BE-2——51-A=+—HILEE A%
BA TABERER S  AHRERIMT -

FEER_FENFREZEATET L
R7 - RELTHRAUE4AT  ZEXH
BREBEBERS  LWAETRR 2
BB BRAEORE © TSI
ERARBR-ZEBNFNA+LH T
BB ARE  YR_ZZAFETANA
RERRFF IR & L1987 ORI

Cap amount
approved

by the
independent
CHETC][o 165

REBIIRR
HIENSEE LR
HK$’000
BT T

HK$°000
BT

Licence fee payable by RoadShow Media

Limited (“RoadShow Media”) (Note 2) to
KMB in relation to the grant of a licence

by KMB for soliciting advertising business

in respect of the interior panels of the bus

body of the KMB buses

11,000 43,000

RoadShow Media Limited([ RoadShow Media )
(MzF2)EREEANEETERATES
T EEEBNRETEANE NS

Licence fee payable by Bus Power Limited
(Note 3) to KMB in relation to the grant of
a licence by KMB for the exclusive right to
market, display and maintain advertisements

at the exterior panels of the bodies of the

KMB buses

57,500 85,000

Bus Power Limited(FfizE 3) 5L EBI%H B R
BRREFESRE S INBEEN B R ETER

NEX TSR

GEX

1.

3. Bus Power Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Company.

NEBAEBHERERERAR(IHBNEEEZE
MEAE -

RoadShow Media BAARIMEEZEN B AR -
Bus Power Limited AR AR EEE2 LB AR -

BABERERAT —B—FFR
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The Group entered into the transactions with the connected
parties in 2008 as set out below. The transactions constitute
continuing connected transactions which are subject to
reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The details of the transactions listed below were disclosed

in the circular of the Company dated 28 November 2008 and
were approved at the special general meeting by the independent
shareholders on 15 December 2008.

The details of the annual caps in respect of the royalty fees
payable and the annual caps in respect of the Shortfall receivable
and the management fees payable under the following
transactions, for the year ended 31 December 2011 and for the
7 months ending 31 July 2012 were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 29 March 2011 and

the circular of the Company dated 20 April 2011. Based

on the applicable percentage ratios, the annual caps in

respect of the royalty fees payable are subject to the reporting
and announcement requirements but exempt from the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements of Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules. The annual caps in respect of the

Shortfall receivable and the management fees payable

are subject to the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. KMB Resources Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of TIH and the intermediate controlling shareholder
holding approximately 73.01% of the issued share capital of the
Company, has approved in writing the annual caps for the
Shortfall and the management fees for the year ended 31
December 2011 and the 7 months ending 31 July 2012.

Annual Report 2011

FEER _ZTEN\FRAEALETTL
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ii) Name of :
Nature of transactions

REMEE

connected parties

BEALER

Royalty fee payable by Bus Focus Limited

Cap amount
approved

by the
independent
shareholders

BB RRR
HERNEEER

HK$’000
BT

HK$°000
BT T

(“Bus Focus”) (Note 4) to KMB in connection

3) KMB with the provision of media sales services for
HE transit vehicle shelters owned by KMB 14,305 15,000
Bus Focus Limited ([Bus Focus]) (st 4) 5k A
NEEFNFEEHRE=REEEBHERT AN
B H R E
' o Management fee payable by Bus Focus to
4) JCDecaux Cityscape Limited JCDecaux Cityscape in connection with the
(“JCDecaux Cityscape”) provision of media sales services for transit
(Note 5) vehicle shelters owned by KMB 16,975 18,000
rREREERAR s o - =
(TSRS (HE5) Bus Focus st A M EHEE N ESE@WMIRE T4t
HEHERGAESREXNNERE
Shortfall of guarantee rental receivable by
; Bus Focus in connection with the provision
5) :JEC__DGC?UX Cityscape of media sales services for transit vehicle
R R shelters owned by KMB 557 24,000
Bus Focus st B A M R EHHIRE FRHEE
BIHERBHEKRBZESHNTEHE
Notes: B 5E
4. Bus Focus is an indirect 60%-owned subsidiary of the Company and 4 %us ;Eoéﬁ ﬁﬁ;ﬁi Fiiﬁﬁfg:ﬁﬁ?fﬂ@ﬁf
a direct 40%-owned associate of Immense Prestige Limited (“IPL”). IPL is = o) s es ﬁMﬂg :
a wholly-owned subsidiary of JCDecaux Cityscape Hong Kong Limited E}“ A 40% i a2 B b 5‘“5 > IPL 7% JCDecaux
(“*JCDecaux CHK?). Cityscape Hong Kong Limited ([ JCDecaux
CHKDHZ2 BB AR -
5.  JCDecaux Cityscape is a wholly-owned subsidiary of JCDecaux CHK.

i)

The Group entered into the transaction with the connected

party in 2007 as set out below. The transaction constitutes a
continuing connected transaction which is subject to reporting,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The details
of the transaction listed below were disclosed in the circular of
the Company dated 21 November 2007 and were approved at
the special general meeting by the independent shareholders on
10 December 2007. The details of the annual caps in respect of
the licence fee and service charges payable by RoadShow Media
under the following transaction for the years ended 31 December

ii)

=R A JCDecaux CHKHI 2 EH B AT »

REBR-_ZTLFHEEAZEATET Ml
RS BELTRAUNF1LAZ X HE
REBRER S - WHEBTRE A&
B RERAENETE - TIRZFHBE
RARRAR-_ZEZE+LF+—A=+—A8F
EMBHARE YR -_TT+LF+ A
THRBRRFI ARG - IRFEIE -
RoadShow Mediaft F7EHZ T —%

FR-E——F+-_A=+—-HIFER
HE " Z——F+-_F=+—HItEEA
ST ERREENTEE LRMFS

BABERERAT —B—FFR
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2010 and 2011 and the year ending 31 December 2012 were
disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 17 September
2009 and were approved at the special general meeting by the
independent shareholders on 9 October 2009.

iii) Name of Nature of transaction

connected parties XEME

BEALER

ERARAN-_ZZAFAATELRTIE
HEBEKAEE - WR_ZTZNE+ANA
REBEREHNAE D EB L REH A -

Cap amount

approved

by the

independent

HK$’000 shareholders
RETT EBIREM
ENEEELER

HK$’000

BT T

Licence fee and service charges payable by
RoadShow Media to KMB in connection with
the granting of an exclusive licence to conduct
6) KMB BUS-TV Advertising on KMB’s transit vehicles
ne fitted with the MMOB broadcasting system 26,923 48,000

RoadShow Media SR BHR FaTEEE A RS
SHBERARNNERESH LETELER

BEEEBANEX NIRRT E

Independent Non-Executive Directors have reviewed and confirmed
that the continuing connected transactions as set out in (i), (i) and (iii)
above, which were entered into by the Group, are:

e in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

e on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable than
terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent third
parties; and

e in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

In addition, on the basis of procedures performed, the independent
auditors of the Company (the “External Auditors”) advised that in
respect of the continuing connected transactions as set out in (i), (ii)
and (i) above:

e nothing has come to the External Auditors’ attention that
causes them to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the Board;

e nothing has come to the External Auditors’ attention that causes
them to believe that the transactions were not entered into, in all
material respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions;

e with respect to the aggregate amount of the continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2011, nothing
has come to their attention that causes them to believe that the

RoadShow Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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disclosed continuing connected transactions have exceeded the
respective maximum aggregate annual value (cap) disclosed in
previous announcements made by the Company in respect of each
of the continuing connected transactions.

Use of Proceeds

Since the listing of RoadShow on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited, the Group has utilised approximately HK$425.0 million for the
development of, and the purchase of equipment for use in, the
BUS-TV business and for the acquisition of complementary
businesses in Mainland China. The balance of the proceeds, which
has not been utilised, has been deposited with licensed banks in
Hong Kong.

Corporate Governance

Over the years, the Group has placed strong emphasis on maintaining
high standards of corporate governance and believes good corporate
governance provides a solid and sound framework to assist the
Directors in fulfilling their duties and responsibilities to the Group. The
Group’s standards of corporate governance ensure that the Group’s
corporate decision-making process, internal controls, disclosure of
information and communication with shareholders is conducted in
accordance with sound management practices and in full compliance
with the regulatory standards. The Corporate Governance Report of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011 is set out on pages
47 to 60 of this Annual Report.

EMEENSHER
reB(LRINEE -

FIERERE
BRABREEMARSMBR AR LM
*oAEEARRETEREXREERHZ
WEERE  UARKERERENREEBMD
FB#)78 % 425,000,000 7T © # 7K B) A K P15
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F>
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Dr John CHAN Cho Chak
REZEBE LT AFHL

Chairman T /&
GBS, JP, DBA (Hon), DSocSc (Hon), BA, DipMS, CCMI, FCILT, FHKIoD

Aged 68, Dr Chan has been a Non-executive Director and the Chairman of the
Company since 15 January 2001. He is an Independent Non-executive Director of
Transport International Holdings Limited (“TIH”). He previously served as Managing
Director of TIH and as Managing Director and later Senior Executive Director of The
Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited (“KMB”) and Long Win Bus Company
Limited. He is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of Hang Seng Bank
Limited, Guangdong Investment Limited and Swire Properties Limited. Dr Chan held
many positions in the Hong Kong Civil Service from 1964 to 1978 and from 1980
to 1993, the key ones of which included Private Secretary to the Governor, Deputy
Secretary (General Duties), Director of Information Services, Deputy Chief Secretary,
Secretary for Trade and Industry and Secretary for Education and Manpower. Dr
Chan also served as Executive Director and General Manager of Sun Hung Kai
Finance Company Limited from 1978 to 1980. He was Chairman of the Hong Kong
Jockey Club from 2006 to 2010. Dr Chan is Chairman of the Court of the Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology, a Director of the Community Chest and a
member of the Exchange Fund Advisory Committee.

RTN\m - RELTE-ZZ—F— A
THHEREEARAFNTEER
I REFBRRERERAR
(8BDBIFRTES - 8 EE
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EODTARLAEEREGRHAT
EE-REBELMABERTARA
7 BEEREARATRALHMESR
RAFBBYIFATESZ - RIELR
—AREEFE-AENEFER-ANE
FE-NAN=FRERREBBRA
HEETEELAWE  BEBA -
BR#EEER - Bl RA - THEA
RBERANGEREER - RiEL
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HBENBERABDNTEST AR
B BN _ETRFE_T-FTF
BEEBREBRGIR -MELNAE
BRBRAREMZEGIE  FEQ
BREFEMINEERSHAREGKE -

YUNG Wing Chung
'gﬂ(f&l\

Deputy Chairman 2IE /&

Aged 65. Mr Yung has been a Director of the Company since 20 November 2008.
He is a Corporate Advisor of Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited. He also serves as a
Non-Executive Director of SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited, a Non-
Executive Director and an Alternate Director to Mr Raymond Kwok Ping Luen of Wing
Tai Properties Limited, Director of YATA Limited, Hong Kong Business Aviation Centre
Limited, River Trade Terminal Co. Ltd., Hung Kai Finance Company Limited and
Airport Freight Forwarding Centre Company Limited, and as an Alternate Director to
Mr Raymond Kwok Ping Luen of Transport International Holdings Limited. Prior to his
joining Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited in 1995, Mr Yung had many years of working
experience with a U.S. Bank in various managerial positions in Hong Kong and the
United States.

RoadShow Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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Winnie NG
mEE

Founder and Deputy Chairman &3 A K 8l ¥ %
BA, MBA (Chicago), MPA (Harvard), FGIM, CMILT, MHKIoD

Aged 48. Ms Ng is the Founder of the Company and has been Director since its
inception. She is also a Director of Transport International Holdings Limited, The
Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited, and Long Win Bus Company Limited.
Ms Ng has received numerous awards and recognition. In 2010, she was named
a Woman of Excellence and was also selected as one of 60 Meritorious Chinese
Entrepreneurs with Achievement and National Contribution. In previous years, she won
the Yazhou Zhoukan Young Chinese Entrepreneur Award, was named one of China’s
100 Outstanding Women Entrepreneurs, was Mason Fellow of Harvard University, and
was the Caring Heart Award recipient. She founded and spearheaded listing of this
multi-media company, which business model has been adopted by many companies
in HK, China and over the world.

Active in public service, she is Council Member of The Better Hong Kong Foundation,
Director of Bauhinia Foundation Research Centre, Member of Hospital Authority,
Member of Hong Kong Tourism Board, Member of Vocational Training Council,
Member of Employees Retraining Board, Court Member of The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University, Member of Public Relations Committee of The Community
Chest, and is also involved with a number of other public and community bodies.

Ms Ng holds an MBA degree from the University of Chicago and an MPA degree from
Harvard University.
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MREHAEZMFRBIEEERR
BRENHITHIAL LM

Alex MO Tik Sang
FHEE
Managing Director = 5 2 4<18

..‘.1 FHKIoD

Aged 46. Mr Mo has been a Director of the Company since 15 April 2008. With
more than twenty years of extensive experience in advertising, marketing and the

media field, Mr Mo possesses integrated experience in multiple disciplines of the
communications industry having held management responsibilities in the past sixteen
years. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Mo held a senior position in a leading media
group for Greater China.
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Directors %

Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI
BREEIATHL
Independent Non-Executive Director BV IE#{TESE

BBS, MBE, JP, DProf, BA(Econ), FHKIoD, FHKMA, FBCS,
CITP, FHKIE, HonFACE, PDipCD

Aged 64. Dr Tsui has been a Director of the Company since 1 April 2001. A graduate of
the University of Hong Kong, Dr Tsui obtained her Doctorate degree in Professional Studies
from Middlesex University, UK. She is the Chief Executive Officer of The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors. She is also Fellow of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors, Hong Kong Management Association and The Biritish
Computer Society, Honorary Fellow of the Hong Kong Association for Computer Education
and Chartered Information Technology Professional. Dr Tsui is holder of Professional
Diploma on Corporate Governance and Directorship. A Justice of the Peace, Dr Tsui is a
Member of the Board of Review (Inland Revenue Ordinance) and Deputy Chairman of Hong
Kong Internet Registration Corporation Limited. She was formerly a Wan Chai District
Councillor, a Councillor of Urban Council and Provisional Urban Council and a member of
Broadcasting Authority. She is Founding Chairman of Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra. She
is an Independent Non-Executive Director of AXA Financial Services Trustees Limited and
was an Independent Non-Executive Director of FU JI Food and Catering Services Holdings
Limited (1175). She was selected as one of the Ten Outstanding Young Persons in Hong
Kong 1981 and awarded IT Achiever of the Year 1992, Member of the Most Excellent
Order of the British Empire in 1997, Bronze Bauhinia Star 2003 and the Ken Goulding
Award for the most outstanding professional doctorate of Middlesex University 2007.
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Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung
TREBLATH L

Independent Non-Executive Director B JEHITE S
GBS, OBE, JP, LLD, DSocSc, BA, FCPA (Practising), Hon HKAT,
FCA, FCPA (Aust.), FCIS, FHKloD

...‘.:n‘

Aged 58. Dr Li has been a Director of the Company since 16 September 2004. He is
the Senior Partner of Li, Tang, Chen & Co., Certified Public Accountants (Practising)
and an Independent Non-executive Director of Transport International Holdings
Limited, The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited, Long Win Bus Company
Limited, Sun Hung Kai Properties Limited, SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings
Limited, Wong’s International (Holdings) Limited, Hang Seng Bank Limited, China
Resources Enterprise, Limited and Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.. Dr Li was
an Independent Non-executive Director of Meadville Holdings Limited (a company
listed on the Stock Exchange until its withdrawal status on 19 April 2010). Dr Li is a
member of the 11th National Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference, a member of the Legislative Council of Hong Kong from 1991 to 2004
and Chairman of its Public Accounts Committee from 1995 to 2004. He is also a past
president of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung
RIZCR#AR

Independent Non-Executive Director 3B FFH{TE =
BBS, JP, FHKIoD

Aged 52. Professor Cheung has been a Director of the Company since 19 January
2009. He is the Dean of the School of Business and a Professor (Chair) of Finance, at
the Hong Kong Baptist University. He also holds Advisory and Adjunct Professorships
at Fudan University and Shanghai Jiao Tong University respectively. He obtained a
BSc from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, PhD in Statistics from Universite de
Paris VI, and PhD in Finance from the University of Strathclyde.

He has served as a project coordinator for the Consumer Council in its examination
of the Hong Kong Banking sector. He was Chairman of Core Group on Corporate
Governance, Pacific Economic Cooperation Council and was responsible for drafting
the PECC’s guidelines on good corporate governance practice for Asia-Pacific
economies. He has provided consultancy services to the Asian Development Bank,
United Nations ESCAP, Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong, Financial
Services Bureau, Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and SG Securities (HK) Ltd. He was
also a part-time member of advisory board of the Central Policy Unit of the HKSAR
Government.

Professor Cheung is Chairman of the Advisory Committee of the Enhancing Self-
Reliance Through District Partnership Programme of the Home Affairs Department,
Consultation Panel of the West Kowloon Cultural District Authority. He is also
Chairman of the Supervisory Committee of the Asian Bond Fund (ABF) Hong
Kong Bond Index Fund of the Hong Kong Monetary Authority. He serves on the
Operations Review Committee, and Witness Protection Review Board of Independent
Commission Against Corruption (ICAC), Minimum Wage Commission, Commission
on Strategic Development, Social Enterprise Advisory Committee, and Independent
Police Complaints Council (IPCC). He was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in 2009,
and was appointed as Justice of the Peace in 2007 by the HKSAR Government.
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MAK Chun Keung
FiRE
il . L Director %

Aged 71. Mr Mak has been a Director of the Company since 23 May 2001. He
joined The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited (“KMB”) in 1994, appointed
Commercial Director in 2001 and retired in February 2006. He was Director of KMB’s
first two joint ventures to operate public bus services in People’s Republic of China.
Mr Mak has over twenty years of experience in international banking and finance, and
has held senior executive positions in foreign and local banking institutions throughout
his career.
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Directors %

John Anthony MILLER
HER

Director &5
SBS, OBE, MPA (Harvard), BA (London), FHKIoD

%.::

Aged 61. Mr Miller has been a Director of the Company since 20 March
2008. Mr Miller retired from the Civil Service in February 2007 as Permanent
Representative of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of China to the
World Trade Organization in Geneva. Key positions held over a career spanning
35 years prior to Mr Miller’s retirement include Permanent Secretary for Financial
Services and the Treasury 2002-2004, Director of Housing and Chief Executive
of the Housing Authority 1996-2002, Director-General of Trade 1993-1996,
Director of Marine 1991-1993, Information Coordinator in the Chief Secretary’s
Office 1989-1991 and Private Secretary to the Governor 1979-1982. Mr Miller
is a non-executive director of Transport International Holdings Limited, The
Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited, SmarTone Telecommunications
Holdings Limited and SUNeVision Holdings Limited, and is chairman of Hong
Kong Business Aviation Centre Limited, a partly-owned subsidiary of Sun Hung
Kai Properties Limited. Mr Miller holds an MPA degree from Harvard University
and a BA degree from London University.
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MA(Cantab), MBA, FCILT, MHKIoD

Aged 50. Mr Ho has been a Director of the Company since 13 October 2008. Mr Ho
has been a Director of Transport International Holdings Limited (“TIH”) and of The
Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933) Limited (“KMB”) and Long Win Bus Company
Limited (“LWB”), both wholly-owned subsidiaries of TIH, since 1 January 2001. Mr Ho
joined KMB in September 1998 and served as Finance and Administration Director
from January 1999 to April 2003. He was promoted to Deputy Managing Director
of TIH, KMB and LWB with effect from 10 January 2002. He has been appointed
Managing Director of KMB and LWB since 1 January 2007 and Managing Director
of TIH with effect from 8 April 2008. Positions previously held by him included
Investment Director of a merchant bank and executive director of a number of
transport infrastructure management and investment companies in Hong Kong and
on the Mainland of China. Mr Ho was formerly also a director of four Sino-foreign
joint venture companies of an international leading soft drink brand. Mr Ho holds a
Master’s degree in engineering from Cambridge University and an MBA degree from
The University of Hong Kong.
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Board of Directors =

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak
PRIQZE T K F oL

GBS, JP

Ms Winnie NG
hAagZ

Mr YUNG Wing Chung
AKBIE

Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI

RRRIBLRFEL
BBS, MBE, JP

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung
FREBEIRFHLT

GBS, OBE, JP

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung

RERBEAFHLT

BBS, JP

Mr Alex MO Tik Sang
FHAERSE

Mr MAK Chun Keung
BIRBEE

Mr John Anthony MILLER
HEREE
SBS, OBE

Mr Edmond HO Tat Man
Al

Position held in the Group

A2 52 B e AE O AT

Chairman
ES3

Deputy Chairman
e

Deputy Chairman
e

Independent Non-Executive Director

BIFAITES

Independent Non-Executive Director
B IEITES

Independent Non-Executive Director

BIUFFRITES

Managing Director
ExRpgE

Non-Executive Director

FHITES

Non-Executive Director

FRTES

Non-Executive Director

FHITES

BABERERAT

Date of appointment

ZEBH

15 January 2001
e =

15 January 2001
—ET—F—A+AH

20 November 2008
—ET/\F+—A=1H

1 April 2001
—TEF—FMWHA—H

16 September 2004
ZZEEWPFNA+NE

19 January 2009
—ZENFE-A+AA

15 April 2008
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23 May 2001
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20 March 2008
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13 October 2008
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

E=ZNEREEABBN

Senior Management SXEEAE

Mr Alex MO Tik Sang
ElmERE

Mr Thomas LO Sui Sing
B3 B S A

Ms Jo MAN Miu Sheung
N gt

Mr Simon SIU Kar Chun
BXRIRGTE

Ms Ada LO Ching
BEX+

RoadShow Holdings Limited

Position held in the Group

R B R R

Managing Director
Exmixe

Chief Operating Officer
EEEH

Chief Financial Officer and Company
Secretary

G RBGR ARIME

General Manager, Marketing & Sales
(Greater China)

M REREEIE(RPEME)

Operations & Planning Director
LENRERE

Annual Report 2011

Year joined the Group
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April 2008
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September 2008
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February 2007
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October 2010
T —ZF+HA
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RoadShow’s Corporate Governance Framework

The Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”)
have placed strong emphasis on maintaining high standards of
corporate governance and believe that good corporate governance
provides a solid and sound framework to assist the Board of Directors
(the “Board”) in fulfilling its duties and responsibilities to the Group
and its shareholders.

In November 2004, The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

(the “Stock Exchange”) issued the Code on Corporate Governance

Practices and Corporate Governance Report (the “Stock Exchange

Code”), which took effect for accounting periods commencing on or
after 1 January 2005. The Stock Exchange Code sets out principles
of good corporate governance and two levels of recommendations,

namely:

e Code Provisions (listed companies are expected to comply with all
these provisions or to give considered reasons for any deviation);
and

e Recommended Best Practices (listed companies are encouraged
to comply with these recommendations or to give reasons for any
deviation).

On 14 March 2005, the Board established the “RoadShow Code on
Corporate Governance” (the “RoadShow Code”) and the Company
has implemented the RoadShow Code since then. On 8 March
2006, the Board approved and adopted a number of new sections
of the RoadShow Code which, among other things, rectified the

two deviations from the code provisions in the Code of Corporate
Governance Practices contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) as reported in the Annual Report for the year ended 31
December 2005. The RoadShow Code was further updated in March
2009 in accordance with the amendments to the Listing Rules which
had become effective from 1 January 2009.

Amendments to the Stock Exchange Code were announced in
October 2011. The revised Appendix 14, Corporate Governance Code
and Corporate Governance Report (the revised Stock Exchange Code)
will become effective on 1 April 2012.

The Stock Exchange allows issuers to devise their own codes on
corporate governance practices on such terms as they may consider
appropriate, provided reasons are given for any deviation from the
Stock Exchange Code or the revised Stock Exchange Code. The
RoadShow Code was most recently updated in March 2012 to reflect
the new requirements under the revised Stock Exchange Code.
Shareholders may obtain a hard copy from the Company Secretary on
request at any time.
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Compliance with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices

The Company was in compliance with all applicable code provisions
set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices as set out
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31
December 2011.

The Board of Directors

The Board is composed of ten Directors as at 31 December 2011,
three of whom are Independent Non-Executive Directors (“INEDs”).
These INEDs bring a wide range of business and financial experience

to the Board, which contributes to the effective direction of the Group.

In order to oversee various aspects of the Company’s affairs, the
Board has appointed various Board Committees. The majority of the

members of the Board Committees are either INEDs or Non-Executive

Directors (“NEDs”). Each of the committees has its specific terms of
reference. The Company’s boardroom framework is outlined below:
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Details of all Directors, including the Chairman, Managing Director
(“MD”), Executive Director, NEDs and INEDs are set out on pages
40 to 44 of this Annual Report. The relationships (including financial,
business, family or other material or relevant relationships) among
members of the Board are also disclosed. There is no such
relationship between the Chairman and the MD.

Roles and Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for promoting the success of the Group
by directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective

RoadShow Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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manner. Each director has a duty to act in good faith in the best
interests of the Company.

The types of decisions that are taken by the Board include those
relating to:

e the strategic plans and objectives of the Company;

e the monitoring and controlling of the Group’s operating and
financial performance;

e overseeing the management of relationships with stakeholders,
including shareholders, customers, Government, suppliers,
employees and the community; and

e the assessment and management of risk to which the Group is
exposed.

The Directors are responsible for the preparation of the Group’s
financial statements for each financial year or period that give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and
cash flows for that year or period. In preparing the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011, the Directors have:

e selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently;
e made judgments and estimates that are prudent and reasonable; and
e prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the Group’s
financial statements. This responsibility extends to annual and interim
reports, “price-sensitive” announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules, as well as reports to regulators and
information required to be disclosed pursuant to statutory requirements. The
responsibility of the External Auditors for the audit of the financial statements
of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2011 is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 69 to 70 of this Annual Report.

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Board at all times
complied with the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three INEDs and also the requirement that one
of these INEDs should possess appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Pursuant to the requirement of the Listing Rules, the Company has received
a written confirmation from each INED of his or her independence from the
Company. The Company considers all of the INEDs to be independent.

Board Meeting

The Board met regularly throughout the year to discuss the overall
strategy as well as the operational and financial performance of the
Group. All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major
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changes that may affect the Group’s businesses, including relevant
rules and regulations. Written procedures are also in place for Directors
to seek independent professional advice in performing their Directors’
duties at the Company’s expense. No request was made by any
Director for such independent professional advice in 2011. Five Board
meetings were held during 2011 and the average attendance rate

of Directors was 98% (2010: 97%). The attendance record of the
Directors of the Company in 2011 is set out in the following table.

HERESSKBUEEEANSERBEITES
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Attendance of individual Directors at Board meetings in 2011

BREER -2 —FETHESSZZNLEER

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
BYFHITES:

Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI

AR EL

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung

FREF/L

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung
RICREE

Non-Executive Directors:
FHITES:

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak (Chairman)
REEBEL (£F)

Ms Winnie NG (Deputy Chairman)
mBESLZL (FZEEF)

Mr YUNG Wing Chung (Deputy Chairman)
BDKBERE (BIEFE)

Mr MAK Chun Keung
FiRBEE

Mr John Anthony MILLER
HEREE

Mr Edmond HO Tat Man
EX

Executive Director:
HITES:

Mr Alex MO Tik Sang
EHELEE
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Meetings Attended/Held Percentage
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Board Committees

The Board has appointed an Executive Committee, Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee to oversee
various aspects of the Company’s affairs.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established on 12 September 2001. The
Committee is composed of four Directors, three of whom are NEDs.

The Executive Committee meets regularly throughout the year and on
an ad hoc basis if necessary to review business operations, financial
operations and ad hoc projects of the Group. These projects include
major acquisitions, investments and their funding requirements.

During 2011, the Executive Committee held six meetings. The
attendance record of the members of the Executive Committee in
2011 is summarised below:
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Attendance of individual members at Executive Committee meetings in 2011
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Mr John Anthony MILLER (chairman)
BEREE (£EF)

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak (deputy chairman)
FREZELRERE (FEE)

Mr Alex MO Tik Sang
EHWMELE

Mr Edmond HO Tat Man
fZE

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 11 April 2001. The
Committee is composed of five NEDs, three of whom are INEDs. The
MD is required to attend each Audit Committee meeting as requested
by the members of the Committee. After each meeting, the Audit
Committee reports to the Board on significant issues. As at the date
of this Annual Report, the members of the Audit Committee are Dr
Eric Li Ka Cheung (chairman), Dr Carlye Wai-Ling Tsui, Ms Winnie Ng,
Mr Yung Wing Chung and Professor Stephen Cheung Yan Leung.

The Audit Committee is to assist the Board in fulfilling its
responsibilities relating to accounting and reporting practices, to
improve the credibility and objectivity of the Company’s financial and
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other reports, and to strengthen the system of internal control, risk
management and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

During 2011, the Audit Committee held three meetings. The Audit
Committee reviewed the following documents and matters in the
meetings:

e the Company’s Report of the Directors, Independent Auditor’s
Report and Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December
2010 and 2010 Annual Report, with a recommendation to the
Board for approval;

e the Company’s Interim Financial Report for the six months ended
30 June 2011 and Interim Report 2011, with a recommendation to
the Board for approval;

e the Company’s accounting policies and its compliance with the
prevailing accounting standards of Hong Kong;

e the audit plan of the External Auditors for the year ended 31
December 2011, including the extent of coordination between the
Audit Committee and the auditors;

e the results of the external audits;

e the fees payable to the External Auditors of the interim review
for the six months ended 30 June 2011 and of the audit for the
year ended 31 December 2011, and terms of engagement of the
External Auditors for approval by the Board;

e the results of the 2010 and 2011 internal audits performed by an
outsourced independent professional firm (the “Internal Auditors”);

e the proposed internal audit plan for financial year 2011 of the
Internal Auditors including the extent of co-ordination between the
Audit Committee and the Internal Auditors;

e the effectiveness of the system of internal control of the Group,
including (a) BUS-TV Advertising business - Controls over
programming and production; (b) BUS SHELTERS Advertising
businesses - (i) Controls over operation and contract compliance;
and (i) Controls over billing, credit controls and receipt handling;
(c) Human Resources - Controls over staff recruitment and payroll
processing, roles and responsibilities; (d) Follow up review on
management action plans completed in 2010 for the previous
internal audits; and (e) Entity Level - (i) Controls over strategic
planning, investment and monitoring and budgeting; and
(i) Controls over regulatory compliance;

e the revised terms of reference of Audit Committee; and

e the compliance by the Company with all applicable laws,
regulations, standards and best practice guidelines.

The attendance record of the members of the Audit Committee in
2011 is summarised below:

RoadShow Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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Attendance of individual members at Audit Committee meetings in 2011

EHER-ZE-——FETHNERZETTENLERER

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung (chairman)
TREBL (FEF)

Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI
HEREL

Ms Winnie NG
it =t skegun

Mr YUNG Wing Chung
BKBEE

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung
RICEH®Z

Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 23 March
2004 comprising three NEDs, two of whom are INEDs. As at the date
of this Annual Report, the members of the Remuneration Committee
are Mr Yung Wing Chung (chairman), Dr Carlye Wai-Ling Tsui and
Professor Stephen Cheung Yan Leung.

The Remuneration Committee is intended to define and articulate
a compensation philosophy or strategy consistent with the
strategic objectives of the Company. To achieve this objective, the
Remuneration Committee formulates policies on and reviews the
remuneration of the Company’s Directors and senior management.

The principal elements of the Company’s remuneration policy for
Directors and senior management are:

* no individual should determine his or her own remuneration
package;

e remuneration packages should be on a par with companies with
whom the Company competes for human resources;

e the Company should aim at designing remuneration packages that
attract and retain executives needed to run the Group successfully
and motivate executives to pursue appropriate growth strategies
whilst it should avoid paying an excessive amount for such
puUrposes;

e remuneration packages should reflect the performance and
responsibility of an individual, as well as the complexity of work;
and

e remumeration packages should be structured in such a way that
they provide incentives to Directors and senior management to
improve their individual performance.
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In 2011, the Remuneration Committee:

e reviewed the remuneration package of Directors and made
recommendations to the Board;

e reviewed and assessed criteria for awarding performance related
bonuses to Directors, having regard to the Group’s business
objectives and targets; and

e reviewed the principal elements of the remuneration packages of
senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting in 2011. The
attendance record of the members of the Remuneration Committee in
2011 is summarised below:
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Attendance of individual members at Remuneration Committee meeting in 2011
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Mr YUNG Wing Chung (chairman)
BKBEE (£FE)

Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI
RREREL

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung
RICREE

Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 8 March 2006

comprising three NEDs, two of whom are INEDs. As at the date of this

Annual Report, the members of the Nomination Committee are Mr Yung
Wing Chung (chairman), Dr Carlye Wai-Ling Tsui and Professor Stephen

Cheung Yan Leung.

The principal functions of the Nomination Committee include:

e reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skKills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and
making recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed
changes;

e identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board members,
and selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for Directorships;

e assessing the independence of INEDs; and

e making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors, in particular the Chairman and the MD.
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In 2011, the Nomination Committee:

e reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board and
made recommendations to the Board;

e reviewed the independence of INEDs; and

e made recommendations to the Board about the retirement and
re-appointment of Directors by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting in 2011. The
attendance record of the members of the Nomination Committee in
2011 is summarised below:

RZE—F  RELZEE:

e RMIEEZLEME  RENKE -
FRHES

o MFBUIINTESHBE LML &

o MEBEERARAEEREART LHFERME
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T FHERER R

W RESR

Attendance of individual members at Nomination Committee meeting in 2011
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Mr YUNG Wing Chung (chairman)
BKBEE (FEFE)

Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI
(E3E=gicin

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung
RICREE

Appointment of Directors

The Company follows formal procedures for the appointment of

new Directors. Appointments are first considered by the Nomination
Committee. The nomination is then submitted to the Board for decision
with reference to criteria that include professional knowledge and
industrial experience, personal ethics, integrity and personal skills, and
the time commitments of the candidates. Thereafter, all Directors are
subject to re-election by the shareholders at the general meetings in their
first year of appointment.

All NEDs are appointed for a term of not more than three years.

Chairman and Managing Director

In order to reinforce independence, accountability and responsibility,
the posts of the Chairman and the MD are held separately by Dr
John Chan Cho Chak and Mr Alex Mo Tik Sang respectively. The
Chairman is responsible for ensuring that the Board is functioning
properly with good corporate governance practices and procedures,
whilst the MD is responsible for managing the Group’s businesses in
a manner consistent with the Group’s standards and in accordance
with specific plans, instructions or directions of the Board.
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Company Secretary

The Company Secretary supports the Chairman, Board and Board
Committees by ensuring good information flow and that Board policy
and procedures are followed. She advises the Board on governance
matters and facilities the induction and professional development of
Directors. The Company Secretary is an employee of the Company
and is appointed by the Board. Although the Company Secretary
reports to the Chairman and Managing Director, all Directors may
call upon her for advice and assistance at any time in respect to
their duties and the effective operation of the Board and Board
Committees. The Company Secretary also plays an essential role in
the relationship between the Company and its shareholders, including
to assist the Board in discharging its obligations to shareholders
pursuant to the Listing Rules.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company required all its Directors to comply with the Model
Code as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Following
specific enquiry by the Company, all Directors have confirmed that
they fully complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code throughout the year 2011.

The Company’s Code on Securities Transactions is prepared on
terms no less exacting than the required standard set out in the
Model Code.

Directors’ and Senior Management’s Interests in Shares

Details of Directors’ interests in the shares of the Company are set
out in the Report of the Directors section on pages 64 to 65 of this
Annual Report.

Internal Control

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of
internal controls in RoadShow and reviewing its effectiveness through
the Audit Committee. The Board and the Audit Committee have
decided to outsource the review of the internal controls function to
the Internal Auditors and the Board has delegated to the management
the implementation of such system of internal controls as well as the
review of relevant financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management procedures.

Control Environment

The review of the internal control functions by the Internal Auditors
was based on the “COSQ” framework (the internal control framework
developed by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission).
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The expectations of the Company regarding duty and integrity

are clearly stated in the Company’s Code of Conduct and Staff
Handbook, as well as the policies and procedures manuals, which set
out the rules and polices, for the Directors and employees to follow.
These cover all aspects of administrative and operational activities,
including relationships with customers, suppliers, competitors and
fellow staff. The internal control system covers every activity and
transaction of the Group in RoadShow. The system is based on
clear stewardship responsibilities, authorities and accountability.
Our employees are an important part of our internal system and

the Group expects them to contribute to that system. In addition to
setting our guidelines, principles and values, the Group recognises
that an environment where employees feel free to bring problems to
management is also necessary to make our internal control system
successful.

Control Processes

Since 2004, the management and employees, assisted by the Internal
Auditors with particular professional experience in assessing risks
and control procedures, have evaluated the Company’s control
environment, conducted risk assessments of businesses and
processes, and documented those processes that are critical to the
Group’s performance.

Quialified personnel throughout the Group maintain and monitor

the system of controls on an ongoing basis and the MD and Chief
Financial Officer have to report any significant changes, deficiencies
and material weaknesses in, and fraud related to, internal controls to
the Audit Committee and the Internal Auditors.

Control Effectiveness

In accordance with the internal audit plan designed by the Internal
Auditors and agreed by the Audit Committee, the Internal Auditors
update and review the Company’s internal control system every year
in such a way that the update and review of all the major components
of the internal control system are completed within a period of three
years. The Internal Auditors provide recommendations to management
to improve internal controls after each review for management and
Audit Committee’s consideration.

During 2011, the Internal Auditors reviewed the processes and
procedures for compliance with relevant policies and procedures of
the Company. The scope covered the following processes:

e BUS-TV Advertising
- Controls over programming and production

e BUS SHELTERS Advertising
- Controls over operation and contract compliance
- Controls over billing, credit controls and receipt handling
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e Human Resources
- Controls over staff recruitment and payroll processing, roles and
responsibilities

e Follow up review on management action plans completed in 2010
for the previous internal audits

e Entity Level
- Controls over strategic planning, investment and monitoring and
budgeting
- Controls over regulatory compliance

Based on the findings and comments from the Internal Auditors and
Audit Committee, the Board considered the internal control system
effective and adequate for the year ended 31 December 2011.

No significant areas of concern that might affect the Company’s
shareholders were identified.

Price-sensitive information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of price-sensitive information, the Company

e is aware of its obligations under the Listing Rules and the
overriding principle that information that is expected to be price-
sensitive should be announced immediately;

e conducts its affairs with close regard to the “Guide on disclosure
of price-sensitive information” issued by the Stock Exchange in
2002;

e has included in its Code of Conduct a strict prohibition on the
unauthorised use of confidential or insider information; and

e has established and implemented procedures for responding to
external enquiries about the Group’s affairs. Senior staff of the
Group are identified and authorised to act as the Company’s
spokespersons and respond to enquiries in allocated areas of
issues.

Auditors’ Remuneration

In line with the sound practice that the independence of External
Auditors should not be impaired by other non-audit assignments,
the Group ensures that assignments other than statutory audits
undertaken by External Auditors should not have an adverse impact
on their independence. The External Auditors are also required to
review their relationship with the Group and furnish confirmation to
the Audit Committee confirming their independent status.
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During 2011, the External Auditors (including any entity under
common control, ownership or management with the External
Auditors or any entity that a reasonable and informed third party
having knowledge of all relevant information would reasonably
conclude as part of the audit firm nationally or internationally)
provided the following audit and non-audit services to the Group.
Details are set out below:

Audit
Eiz

Non-audit services

BRI

An independence confirmation has been obtained from the External
Auditors confirming that for the year ended 31 December 2011 and
thereafter to the date of this Annual Report, the External Auditors
are independent of the Group in accordance with the independence
requirements of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Code of Conduct

The Group’s Code of Conduct for Directors and Employees (the
“CCDE”") has long been established to ensure that both Directors
and employees are kept abreast of and fulfill a set of defined ethical
obligations and appropriate behaviours when conducting businesses
and/or performing their duties. The CCDE also provides guidance
on responsibility to the Group’s shareholders, customers and the
community. Any member in breach of the CCDE is subject to
disciplinary action. The CCDE is updated from time to time, taking
into account changes in the relevant legislation and the business
environment.

Investors Relations and Communications

The Company continues to pursue a pro-active policy of promoting
investor relations and communications by holding meetings with
institutional shareholders and analysts. In accordance with the Listing
Rules, the Company would arrange for the notice to shareholders
to be sent in the case of annual general meetings at least 20 clear
business days before the meeting and to be sent at least 10 clear
business days before in the case of all other meetings. Under the
Bye-laws of the Company, all shareholders have 21 clear days’
notice of the Annual General Meeting (AGM) and Special General
Meeting (SGM) for the passing of a special resolution, and 14 clear
days’ notice of all other general meetings at which the Directors
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and Committee chairmen or members are available to answer their
questions. A representative (usually the engagement partner) of
the External Auditor also attends the AGM and will take questions
from shareholders relating their audit of the Company’s financial
statements.

The results of any voting by poll are announced and published as
soon as possible, but in any event no later than 30 minutes before
the earlier of the commencement of the morning trading session or
any pre-opening session on the business day following the meeting,
on the Stock Exchange’s and the Company’s website together

with details of the meeting, including the time and venue and major
resolutions. As a channel to further promote effective communication,
the Company’s website is maintained to disseminate corporate
information and other relevant financial and non-financial information
electronically and on a timely basis.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company, shareholders holding at
the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary of the Company,
to convene a SGM for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition. The requisition shall be deposited at our Hong Kong
principal office at 9 Po Lun Street, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals at an AGM
or SGM include a written notice of those proposals being submitted
by shareholders, addressed to the Company Secretary at the
principal office. The detailed procedures vary according to whether
the proposal constitutes an ordinary resolution or a special resolution,
or whether the proposal relates to the election of a person other than
a Director of the Company as a director. The relevant procedures are
set out in the Notice of AGM which accompanies the despatch of this
Annual Report to shareholders and will be included with the notice

to shareholders of any future AGM. The procedures for shareholders
to convene and put forward proposals at an AGM or SGM (including
election of a person other than a Director of the Company as a
director) are available on our website or on request to the Company
Secretary.

Enquires may be put to the Board by contacting either the Company
Secretary through (852) 2746 5200 or e-mail at cosec@roadshow.
com.hk or directly by questions at an AGM or SGM. Questions on the
procedure for convening or putting forward proposals at an AGM or
SGM may also be put to the Company Secretary at the same means.

During 2011, the Board confirmed that there were no significant
changes made in the Company’s Bye-laws.
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EEEHG

The directors of RoadShow Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) (the “Directors”) submit herewith their annual
report together with the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2011.

Principal place of business

The Company is a company incorporated in Bermuda and
has its registered office at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda and principal place of
business at 9 Po Lun Street, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon, Hong
Kong, respectively.

Principal activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding and the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the provision of media sales and management
and administrative services for Multi-media On-board
(“MMOB” or “BUS-TV”), transit vehicle exteriors (“BUS-
BODY”) and interiors (“IN-BUS”) advertising businesses
and the operation of media advertising management
services through marketing advertising spaces on transit
vehicle exteriors, interiors, shelters and outdoor signages
and the provision of advertising agency services.

The principal activities and other particulars of the
Company’s subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the
financial statements. The analysis of the principal
activities and geographical locations of the operations of
the Group during the financial year are set out in note 12
to the financial statements.

Financial statements

The loss of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2011 and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s
affairs as at that date are set out in the financial
statements on pages 71 to 141 of this Annual Report.

Dividends

The Directors recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK6.11 cents per share (2010: HK4.85 cents per
share) in respect of the year ended 31 December 2011.
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Fixed assets

Details of movements in fixed assets during the year are
set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

Share capital

Details of the share capital of the Company are set out
in note 26 to the financial statements. There were no
movements during the year.

Transfer to reserves

Loss attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company, before dividends, of HK$48,637,000 (2010:
HK$61,641,000) has been transferred to reserves. Details
of movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and note 26 to the
financial statements, respectively.

Directors

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date
of this report were:

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak Chairman
GBS, JP
Ms Winnie NG Deputy Chairman

Mr YUNG Wing Chung

Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI*
BBS, MBE, JP

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung*
GBS, OBE, JP

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan
Leung*
BBS, JP

Mr Alex MO Tik Sang

Mr MAK Chun Keung

Mr John Anthony MILLER
SBS, OBE

Mr Edmond HO Tat Man

Deputy Chairman

Managing Director

*

Independent Non-Executive Director
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Directors (continued)

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-Law 87 and
Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), Dr John
Chan Cho Chak, Ms Winnie Ng, Dr Eric Li Ka Cheung
and Professor Stephen Cheung Yan Leung retire from
the Board of Directors (the “Board”) by rotation and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting has an unexpired service
contract which is not determinable by the Company or
any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment of
compensation, other than normal statutory obligations.

Directors’ interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures

The Directors who held office at 31 December 2011 had
the following interests in the shares of the Company, its
holding companies, subsidiaries and other associated
corporations (within the meaning of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (“SFQ”)) at that date as recorded in
the register of directors’ and chief executives’ interests
and short positions required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO:
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Interests in issued shares REBITROTPHES
% of
total
Total issued
number of shares
Personal Family  Corporate Other shares held 2
Beneficial interests interests interests interests interests FiEE EBRITRA
EnER BAER EYi Y £ NEIER  HtER RGHEE Bak
The Company: Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
AAE BREESB®001I THEBR
Ms Winnie NG (Note 2) {h#E#§Z&+ (#fa2) 1,000,000 = = 123,743 1,123,743 0.1%
Transport International Holdings Limited (“TIH”) (Note 1): Ordinary shares of HK$1 each
BEEREREBRAR(TEE]D (MZ 1) SREEBE1 THEER
Dr John CHAN Cho  BRAEEREL
Chak 2,000 - - - 2,000 0.0%
Ms Winnie NG (Note 3) {hZBH# L+ (K1 3) 41,416 = — 21,000,609 21,042,025 5.2%
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Directors’ interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures
(continued)

Interests in issued shares (continued)
Notes:

1 TIH is the ultimate holding company of the Company.

2 Ms Winnie NG has interest in 123,743 shares in the Company
as a beneficiary of certain private trusts which beneficially held
the shares.

3 Ms Winnie NG has interest in 21,000,609 shares in TIH as a
beneficiary of certain private trusts which beneficially held the
shares.

Apart from the foregoing, none of the Directors or any
of their spouses or children under eighteen years of age
has interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company, or any of its
holding companies, subsidiaries or other associated
corporations, as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies.

Confirmation of independence

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and considers all the Independent Non-Executive
Directors to be independent.

Share option scheme

The Company had a share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
which was adopted on 7 June 2001. The Scheme was
valid and effective for a period of ten years and expired
on 6 June 2011.

No option was granted during the year and there were no
outstanding options at 31 December 2011.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was
the Company, any of its holding companies, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate.
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A123, 743 ML M FHAGEERF
B LA
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgRE

Substantial shareholders’ and other
persons’ interests and short positions in
shares, underlying shares and debentures

At 31 December 2011, the interests or short positions of
the persons (not being Directors and chief executives of
the Company) in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified
to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV
of the SFO and required to be entered into the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO were as follows:

TERRREMATRRSG HEROR
EREENERE KRR

RZZE——F+-A=+—H ' BARRESEE&
BITERA BN A LETH A A A B sk H A R AR E
B(TER(EFRBEEKGDEXVE) KK HD X8
BROMERIAS  BRB(EERBEENE
XVHBE2RIDHFRETENEARAREBHER
SEBERDA W RIR(ER R EEH)E 336 1%
BENAARGEENERME @ FBOT -

Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
EREEBE0ITHNERR

% of total
Total number issued
Registered Corporate of shares shares
shareholders interests held H2HFEBT
BRRR NEER FREROEH RHBEDLH
Substantial shareholders FER R
TIH (Note) BmHE) 728,127,410 728,127,410 73.01%
KMB Resources Limited KMB Resources Limited 728,127,410 — 728,127,410 73.01%
Other person Hih AL
DJE Investment S.A. DJE Investment S.A.
and others R HAM 69,956,000 - 69,956,000 7.01%
Note: KMB Resources Limited owns 728,127,410 shares in the i : KMB Resources Limited A& 728,127,410 IR

Company. KMB Resources Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of TIH, which is accordingly deemed to be
interested in the same number of shares held by KMB
Resources Limited in the Company under the SFO.

Apart from the foregoing, no other interests or short
positions required to be recorded in the register kept
under section 336 of the SFO have been notified to the
Company.

Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to
the Company and within the knowledge of the Directors
as at the date of this Annual Report, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing
Rules.

RoadShow Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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Directors’ interests in contracts

No contract of significance to which the Company, any of
its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a Director of the Company had
a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

Major customers and suppliers

The information in respect of the Group’s sales and
purchases attributable to the major customers and
suppliers respectively during the financial year is as
follows:

ESHNANER

ARTF - BEMZERAR  HEARLRRZMER
AYE2ERZITEMNEEZEHN  FARXFAEENA
FEZREZLAINFAEMNKRZEEANES -

TREFRHER

RAMBEER  ARBEITEEPRHEFEREN
HERBEEHDREIMT

Percentage of the Group’s total

HREEEAYF DL
Sales Purchases
HE BE
The largest customer BAEFE 11%
Five largest customers in aggregate AREEERT 25%
The largest supplier BRAEER 34%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AAREEREEET 58%

At no time during the year have the Directors and their
associates had any interest in these major customers and
suppliers.

During the year, The Kowloon Motor Bus Company (1933)
Limited, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of TIH, is
the largest supplier of the Group.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the
Company’s listed securities

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-Laws and the Law in Bermuda.

Directors and senior management profiles

Profiles of the Directors and senior management of the
Company are set out on pages 40 to 46 of this Annual
Report.

ESNEBEATYENFACAEER LAER
EPRHRAEARTA#EES -

FR - NEBL(—AZZ)ERDA(HANHBE
2EMBRAR) RAKENRAMER -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
ExgRE

Five year financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
pages 142 to 143 of this Annual Report.

Retirement schemes

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance and employee pension schemes
organised by the local governments of The People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”) under the regulations of
the PRC. All these retirement schemes are defined
contribution plans and their particulars are set out in note
30 to the financial statements.

Auditors

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
KPMG as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

By Order of the Board

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 March 2012

RoadShow Holdings Limited Annual Report 2011
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

ROADSHOW HOLDINGS LIMITED

BEMEEZRARLARRNBLZEMRE

epnac

Independent auditor’s report to the
shareholders of RoadShow Holdings
Limited

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of RoadShow Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) set out on pages
71 to 141, which comprise the consolidated and
company balance sheets as at 31 December 2011,
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit.
This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

BEABEZRARQIAREN
B ZBE R E

(REREZMRINBERLDA)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

ROADSHOW HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEABERBROARRNE L X BERE

Auditor’s responsibility (continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2011
and of the Group’s loss and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

14 March 2012
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
meEm%

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-Z——F+-A=Z+-HULFEGRBEHE)

Note 2011 2010
B E $°000 $°000
Fr T
Turnover = 2 &12 371,491 325,231
Other revenue and other net income Habg A R H = F 48 3 25,837 31,213
Total operating revenue A PN 397,328 356,444
Operating expenses KEBH
Royalty, licence and management fees EHE - BTEREEE (133,893) (135,866)
Cost of production BER AR (71,012) (62,964)
Staff expenditure BT A (60,047) (54,454)
Depreciation and amortisation TEREHE (9,699) (6,498)
Cost of inventories BFERAK (6,517) (5,849)
Repairs and maintenance HERRE (6,802) (5,171)
Impairment loss of media assets HEEERERE - (171)
Impairment loss of accounts receivable FEWRREERE - (318)
Other operating expenses Hith =& A (30,165) (24,039)
Total operating expenses KReEBHAE (318,135) (295,330)
Profit from operations REBRF 79,193 61,114
Impairment loss of other non-current HttFERBEMEERE
financial assets 518 4 (109,606) (110,000)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBARNER 28 (468) =
Loss before taxation BB AT B 5 (30,881) (48,886)
Income tax g% 6(a) (12,863) (8,269)
Loss for the year rEEER (43,744) (57,155)
Attributable to: BT
Equity shareholders of the Company RATBRR 9 (48,637) (61,641)
Non-controlling interests FERER 4,893 4,486
Loss for the year rEEER (43,744) (57,155)
Loss per share (in Hong Kong cents) SREEGBW) 11
Arising from the Group’s operations EEEAREEREER 6.11 4.85
Arising from impairment loss of other EEEBHMERBERMEE
non-current financial assets WIEEE (10.99) (11.03)
Basic AR (4.88) (6.18)
Diluted i3] N/A RER N/A RER

The notes on pages 78 to 141 form part of these
financial statements. Details of dividends payable to
equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the
year are set out in note 10.

BABERERAT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEZEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-Z——F+-A=Z+-HULFEGRBEHE)

2011 2010
$°000 $’000
Fr T
Loss for the year rEEER (43,744) (57,155)
Other comprehensive income for the AEEHMEEKE
year (after tax and reclassification (RBREHISEAER) !
adjustments):
Available-for-sale debt securities: AHHEEKES
Changes in fair value recognised in the FRABRBRAANEBEREEN
fair value reserve during the year NABEEER (367) 360
Exchange differences on translation of BREBBIUNER
the financial statements of operations U E S ES:)
outside Hong Kong X ELE 411 559
Reclassification of exchange reserve HERBUIMERE
on disposal of operations outside KEHIEN
Hong Kong fE X% (751) =
Total comprehensive income for the year ZAEE2XHKFEEHE (44,451) (56,236)
Attributable to: BT :
Equity shareholders of the Company RATRR (49,344) (60,722)
Non-controlling interests FEERRER 4,893 4,486
Total comprehensive income for the year ZAEEXHEKFEEHE (44,451) (56,236)

The notes on pages 78 to 141 form part of these
financial statements.

FEI8BEEF 141 BENHABATBEREN—3D °
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
REEERRER

At 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
REZB——F+ZA=Z+—H(RBYHE)

Note 2011 2010
gz $°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Non-current assets ERBEE
Fixed assets BEEEE 13 64,672 8,406
Non-current prepayments ERBFET FRIE 15 1,667 44,268
Other non-current financial assets HivFERBERMEE 17 80,872 219,140
Deferred tax assets BEERIEEE 24(b) 3,060 4,067
150,271 275,881
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 78 18 1,306 979
Amount due from ultimate holding EWRAZER AT
company IE 19(a) 5,004 5,004
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries FEWE R B AT RE 19(d) 6,165 3,867
Accounts receivable FE W BR R 20 117,252 78,302
Other receivables and deposits HivEW R KR € 7,010 8,422
Prepayments T RIE 15 9,580 9,580
Current tax recoverable FEWR AR ER i 18 24(a) 215 —
Pledged bank deposits 2IRHRITER 21 41,200 41,200
Bank deposits and cash BRITEAERE 22 428,071 383,521
615,803 530,875
Current liabilities REBEE
Accounts payable AT BR X 23 4,370 4,729
Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries ERRZRAKE LD RRE 19(d) 6,442 4,370
Other payables and accruals HMENRAREFGTER 110,650 53,553
Current tax payable FE{S A B F 18 24(a) 2,801 8,350
124,263 71,002
Net current assets RBEEFE 491,540 459,873
Total assets less current liabilities EEHRERABERSE 641,811 735,754
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities REHREEE 24(b) 81 86
NET ASSETS EEZRE 641,730 735,668
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BRAER#FEE
Share capital [N 26(b) 99,737 99,737
Reserves HES 530,739 628,455
Total equity attributable to equity AATRRRELER
shareholders of the Company W 630,476 728,192
Non-controlling interests FEIR R R 11,254 7,476
TOTAL EQUITY ERAE 641,730 735,668

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 14 March 2012.

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak
FREEE L
Chairman

FE

The notes on pages 78 to 141 form part of these
financial statements.

REFGN T _F-ATHHZELFFAIEL -

Alex MO Tik Sang
ESY RS

Managing Director
EEHKE

FI8EEF 141 ANHEBATIEREN—ED -
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BALANCE SHEET
BEERRR

At 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
REZB——F+ZA=Z+—H(RBYHE)

Note 2011 2010
B & $°000 $’000
Fr T
Non-current assets *RBEE
Investments in subsidiaries MEBARIRKRE 16 62,835 62,835
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE WS Bt B A RIFRIE 19(c) 510,493 636,863
573,328 699,698
Current assets RBEE
Amount due from ultimate holding FEUR B 45 2 B 12 )
company ;E 19(a) 5,004 5,004
Other receivables and deposits HthEWIRA R IES 949 743
Pledged bank deposits BIEARITER 21 41,200 41,200
Bank deposits and cash RITERRRE 22 174,805 193,765
221,958 240,712
Current liabilities REBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEHE A RRE 19(b) 194,697 233,107
Other payables and accruals HithEFIRA R ESER 6,441 5,479
201,138 238,586
Net current assets RBEEFE 20,820 2,126
Total assets less current liabilities EELERRBAR 594,148 701,824
Non-current liabilities FRBERE
Amounts due to subsidiaries ERHEB 2B RE 19(b) 72,493 —
NET ASSETS EEFE 521,655 701,824
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BERFEES 26(a)
Share capital &N 99,737 99,737
Reserves fHES 421,918 602,087
TOTAL EQUITY DB 521,655 701,824

Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of KEZFeWN _T—_—F=F+WBAZETFAEL -
Directors on 14 March 2012.

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak Alex MO Tik Sang

RREZEET EFHE
Chairman Managing Director
FE EFHEE

The notes on pages 78 to 141 form part of these E78EBZEZE 141 BB AMBEREN—IFH o

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REEREEXR

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE_E-——S+-A=1t-ALFEUREEHE)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

ARARRER
Retained
profits/
(ac- Non-
Note Share Share General  Contributed Other  Fairvalue  Exchange  cumulated controlling
(iR capital  premium reserve surplus reserve reserve reserve losses) Total interests  Total equity
MREE RERFH/
ke ROEE -RiEE  EEES  HbRR i MERE (RHFR) B FERER  ERAE
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i T T T T T T T T T T
Balance at 1 January 2010  —B-B%-A-ANER 99737 531,769 839 (200) (605) (120) 13962 157505 802,977 6,190 809,167
Changes in equity for 2010:  —E-BEMEHLE .
(Loss)/profit for the year KEE(FE) /B - - - - - - - (B1641)  (61641) 4,486 (57,155
Other comprehensive income 12 i3 - - - - - 360 559 - 919 = 919
Total comprehensive income  AEE2ANHEE - - - - - 360 559 (61641 (60,722 4486 (56,236)
Dividends approved in respect & LEEEEH
of the previous year RE 10(b) - - - - - - - (14,083) (14,083) - (14,063)
Dividends paid to ERTEERERN
non-controlling interests RE - - - - - - - - - (3,200) (3,200)
Balance at RZB-BE+ZA=1-8
31 December 2010 and R=%--%-h-
1 January 2011 s 99,737 531,769 839 (200) (605) 240 14521 81,891 728,192 7476 735,668
Changes in equity for 2011:  —B--EMEHEH
(Loss)/profit for the year FEE(FR)/BR - - - - - - - (48,637)  (48,637) 4,893  (43,744)
Other comprehensive income £t 2 W3 - - - - - (367) (340) - (107) - (107)
Total comprehensive income ~ AEE2ENEHAE - - - - - (367) (340)  (48,637)  (49,344) 4,893 (44,451)
Dividends approved in respect A& - FECEN
of the previous year K& 10() - - - - - - - (48372 (48372) - (48372
Transfer of reserves upon  HEKBARBER
disposal of subsidiaries e - - (237) - - - - 287 - (1,115) (1,115)
Balance at i Sl e S
31 December 2011 fs 99,737 531,769 602 (200) (605) (127) 14,481  (14,881) 630,476 11,254 641,730

The notes on pages 78 to 141 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
BRERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2011 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
HE-Z——F+-A=Z+-HULFEGRBEHE)

Note 2011 2010
B E $°000 $°000
Fr T
Operating activities RESES
Loss before taxation PRI AIET 1B (30,881) (48,886)
Adjustments for: FE
Depreciation and amortisation EREH 9,699 6,498
Loss/(gain) on disposal of fixed assets HEBRTEEERE(BA) 105 (176)
Impairment loss of accounts receivable EWERFREEE - 318
Write-down of inventories FE MR 19 =
Reversal of write-down of inventories 3 2177 & MR - (455)
Impairment loss of media assets HEEERERSE - 171
Impairment loss of other non-current HitEREn <& ERE
financial assets &8 109,606 110,000
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBQRMNER 468 =
Interest income FE WA (9,815) (12,024)
Foreign exchange gain ERAE (1,766) (9,258)
Operating profit before changes in EEESEFHAN
working capital KRBT 77,435 46,188
Decrease in non-current prepayments ERBFEMFRIBRD 9,580 9,580
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE(#Em), D (346) 614
Increase in amount due from ultimate BB A&ER D RRIE
holding company byl - (231)
Increase in amounts due from fellow ALEEN N ]
subsidiaries byl (2,298) (870)
Increase in accounts receivable FE U BR FXAE o0 (38,950) (14,150)
Decrease in other receivables and deposits HEMEWERRIZEHD 1,885 1,430
Decrease in accounts payable B ERRRD (359) (202)
Increase in amounts due to fellow ENRZRAM B LD RRIE
subsidiaries 0 2,072 1,084
Increase in other payables and HtEMARRKETER
accruals 0 51,231 22,728
Cash generated from operations RELKETBHNES 100,250 66,171
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EREBAEH (17,609) (2,352)
Net cash generated from operating RELETHHN
activities BeEH 82,641 63,819
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Note 2011 2010
B E $°000 $°000
Fr T
Investing activities REEE
Payment for purchase of fixed assets BABEEEMNR (27,078) (35,991)
Proceeds from sale of fixed assets HEBEEEMBRE - 218
Payment for purchase of other non-current BAHMIERBHEHEE
financial assets (B - (76,090)
Net cash outflow from disposal of HENBLARNRER
subsidiaries R 28 (2,337) =
Repayment of loan from investee BRELNAEEER 27,064 =
Loan to investee BEXRTHIRELT - (26,127)
Interest received S &S, 10,498 8,805
Increase in bank deposits maturing over — BB EBBNPHIRITER
three months 30 (27,954) (43,546)
Net cash used in investing activities ARRETBHNRESFE (19,807) (172,731)
Financing activities BEEE
Decrease in pledged bank deposits EIRFRITERRELD - 10,000
Dividends paid 2RE (48,372) (14,063)
Dividends paid to non-controlling B FIHFEZERBRRB
shareholders B’E - (3,200)
Net cash used in financing activities AREBETBHNESFE (48,372) (7,263)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and BERBELEEYHEM
cash equivalents (R2)RE 14,462 (116,175)
Cash and cash equivalents at R—B—HWEERK
1 January HEeEEEY 141,036 251,987
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EZRSENE 535 5,224
Cash and cash equivalents at R+t-ZA=+—-BHKHERER
31 December BeZEY 22 156,033 141,036

The notes on pages 78 to 141 form part of these
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 5 ok MY =R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(REBETIN  HRBEHE)

1. Significant accounting policies

a)

b)

RoadShow Holdings Limited

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the
Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set
out below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting period of
the Group and the Company. Note 1(c) provides
information on any changes in accounting
policies resulting from initial application of these
developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2011 comprise the Company
and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”).

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is the historical cost
basis except that certain investments (see note
1(e)) are stated at their fair value.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

b)

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience
and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements
about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Judgements and estimates made by management
in the application of HKFRSs that have significant
effect on the financial statements are discussed in
note 33.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments
to HKFRSs and one new Interpretation that are
first effective for the current accounting period
of the Group and the Company. Of these, the
following developments are relevant to the
Group’s financial statements:

— HKAS 24 (revised 2009), Related party
disclosures

— Improvements to HKFRSs (2010)
The Group has not applied any new standard

or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 85 R R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBET - HRBEWITE)

RoadShow Holdings Limited

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

The impacts of the above developments are
discussed below:

— HKAS 24 (revised 2009) revises the definition
of a related party. As a result, the Group
has re-assessed the identification of related
parties and concluded that the revised
definition does not have any material impact
on the Group’s related party disclosures in the
current and previous period. HKAS 24 (revised
2009) also introduces modified disclosure
requirements for government-related entities.
This does not impact the Group because the
Group is not a government related entity.

— Improvements to HKFRSs (2010) omnibus
standard introduces a number of amendments
to the disclosure requirements in HKFRS
7, Financial instruments: Disclosures. The
disclosures about the Group’s financial
instruments in note 27 have been conformed
to the amended disclosure requirements.
These amendments do not have any material
impact on the classification, recognition and
measurements of the amounts recognised in
the financial statements in the current and
previous periods.

d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements from
the date that control commences until the date
that control ceases. Intra-group balances and
transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way as
unrealised gains but only to the extent that there
is no evidence of impairment.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
a subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly
to the Company, and in respect of which the
Group has not agreed any additional terms with
the holders of those interests which would result
in the Group as a whole having a contractual
obligation in respect of those interests that meets
the definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at
fair value or at their proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in
the consolidated balance sheet within equity,
separately from equity attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company. Non-controlling
interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated income statement
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an allocation of the total profit or loss
and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions, whereby
adjustments are made to the amounts of
controlling and non-controlling interests within
consolidated equity to reflect the change in
relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest
in that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest
retained in that former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is recognised at fair value and
this amount is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset (see note 1(e)) or,
when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or jointly controlled
entity.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 1(i)).
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RoadShow Holdings Limited

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 85 R R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBET - HRBEWITE)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

e) Other investments in debt securities and

equity interest

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for
investments in debt securities and equity interest,
other than investments in subsidiaries, are as
follows:

Investments in debt securities and equity interest
are initially stated at fair value, which is their
transaction price unless fair value can be more
reliably estimated using valuation techniques
whose variables include only data from observable
markets. Cost includes attributable transaction
costs, except where indicated otherwise below.
These investments are subsequently accounted
for as follows, depending on their classification:

Investments in debt securities and equity interest
held for trading are classified as current assets.
Any attributable transaction costs are recognised
in profit or loss as incurred. At each balance
sheet date the fair value is remeasured, with
any resultant gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss does not include any dividend and
interest earned on these investments as these are
recognised in accordance with the policies set out
in notes 1(0)(ix) and (viii).

Dated debt securities that the Group and/or the
Company have the positive ability and intention
to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-
maturity securities. Held-to-maturity securities are
stated in the balance sheet at amortised cost less
impairment losses (see note 1(i)).

Investments in equity interest that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured
are recognised in the balance sheet at cost less
impairment losses (see note 1(i)).
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

e) Other investments in debt securities and

f)

equity interest (continued)

Investments in debt securities and equity interest
which do not fall into any of the above categories
are classified as available-for-sale investment.
At each balance sheet date the fair value is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the fair value
reserve, except foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from changes in the amortised cost of
monetary items such as debt securities which
are recognised directly in profit or loss. Dividend
income from these investments is recognised in
profit or loss in accordance with the policy set
out in note 1(0)(ix) and, where these investments
are interest-bearing, interest calculated using
the effective interest method is recognised in
profit or loss in accordance with the policy set
out in note 1(o)(viii). When these investments
are derecognised or impaired (see note 1(i)), the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from equity
to profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the
date the Group commits to purchase/sell the
investments or they expire.

Fixed assets and depreciation
Fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note 1(i)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or
disposal of an item of fixed assets are determined
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item
and are recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 85 R R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBET - HRBEWITE)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

f)

9)

h)

RoadShow Holdings Limited

Fixed assets and depreciation (continued)
Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of
items of fixed assets, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-line method over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

Audio and visual equipment 5 -7 years
Furniture and fixtures 7 years
Hardware and software 5 years
Leasehold improvements Over the remaining

lease term
Motor vehicles 5 years

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Programming library

i)  Programming library consists of commissioned
programming and contracted programming
cost in respect of programming rights of
presentation. Expenditure on commissioned
and contracted programmes is amortised to
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
licence period.

i) Cost of programmes produced in-house is
recognised as an expense in the period in
which it is incurred.

Accounts receivable and other receivables
Accounts receivable and other receivables are
initially recognised at fair value and thereafter
stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 1(i)), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to related
parties without any fixed repayment terms or the
effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts (see
note 1(i)).
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

i)

Impairment of assets

i)

Impairment of investments in available-for-
sale debt securities and equity interest and
receivables

Investments in available-for-sale debt
securities and equity interest and current
and non-current receivables that are stated
at cost or amortised cost or are classified as
available-for-sale securities are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of
the Group about one or more of the following
loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the debtor;
and

— a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment
loss is determined and recognised as follows:

— For investments in subsidiaries, the
impairment loss is measured by comparing
the recoverable amount of the investment
with its carrying amount in accordance
with note 1(i)(ii). The impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable
change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount in accordance
with note 1(i)(ii).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBET - HRBEWITE)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

i) Impairment of assets (continued)
i) Impairment of investments in available-for-
sale debt securities and equity interest and
receivables (continued)

RoadShow Holdings Limited

For unquoted equity interest carried at
cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying
amount of the financial asset and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the current market rate of return for a
similar financial asset where the effect of
discounting is material. Impairment loss
for equity interest carried at cost is not
reversed.

For trade and other receivables and other
financial assets carried at amortised
cost, the impairment loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of these
assets), where the effect of discounting
is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets
share similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have not been
individually assessed as impaired. Future
cash flows for financial assets which are
assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of
an impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be linked objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss shall not result in
the assets’ carrying amount exceeding
that which would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

i) Impairment of assets (continued)

i)

Impairment of investments in available-for-
sale debt securities and equity interest and
receivables (continued)

— For available-for-sale debt securities, the
cumulative loss that has been recognised
directly in the fair value reserve is
reclassified to profit or loss. The amount
of the cumulative loss that is recognised
in profit or loss is the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of any principal
repayment and amortisation) and current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that
asset previously recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses in respect of available-
for-sale debt securities are reversed if the
subsequent increase in fair value can be
objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised.
Reversals of impairment losses in such
circumstances are recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors and bills receivable included
within accounts receivable, whose recovery
is considered doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses for doubtful debts
are recorded using an allowance account. When
the Group is satisfied that recovery is remote,
the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against trade debtors and bills receivable
directly and any amounts held in the allowance
account relating to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
charged to the allowance account are reversed
against the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBET - HRBEWITE)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

i)

RoadShow Holdings Limited

Impairment of assets (continued)

ii) Impairment of other assets
Internal and external sources of information
are reviewed at each balance sheet date to
identify indications that fixed assets may be
impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from
other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it
belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated to
reduce the carrying amount of the assets
in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value
of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

i)

Impairment of assets (continued)
ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)
— Reversals of impairment losses
An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable
amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is
limited to the asset’s carrying amount
that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in
which the reversals are recognised.

iii) Interim financial reporting and impairment
Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required
to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months
of the financial year. At the end of the
interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial
year (see notes 1(i)(i) and (ii)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim
period in respect of unquoted equity
interest carried at cost are not reversed in a
subsequent period. This is the case even if
no loss, or a smaller loss, would have been
recognised had the impairment been assessed
only at the end of the financial year to which
the interim period relates.

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out
costing method and comprises all costs of
purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 85 R R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBET - HRBEWITE)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

)

k)

RoadShow Holdings Limited

Inventories (continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount
of those inventories is recognised as an expense
in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised. The amount of any write-down of
inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.

Accounts payable and other payables
Accounts payable and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value and subsequently stated
at amortised cost unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank
and on hand, demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities. Current tax and movements in deferred
tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit
or loss except to the extent that they relate
to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.
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FEETHER @)
m) P8R (&)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

m) Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable
profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable
profits that may support the recognition of
deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, provided those differences relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in the
same period as the expected reversal of the
deductible temporary difference or in periods into
which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax
asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising
from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that
they will reverse in the future.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 85 R R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBET - HRBEWITE)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

m) Income tax (continued)

RoadShow Holdings Limited

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset
is reviewed at each balance sheet date and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities,
if the Group or the Company has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities,
the Group or the Company intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously; or

— in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

— the same taxable entity; or

— different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered,
intend to realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on a net
basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

n)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group
or the Company has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence
will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided
it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

i) Income from multi-media sales is recognised
when the related advertisements are
telecasted or commercials appear before
the public. Revenue is stated net of agency
commission and rebate.

i) Income from bus interiors and bus exterior
advertising is recognised when the related
advertisements appear before the public.
Revenue is stated net of agency commission
and rebate.

iii) Media sales income from advertising on transit
vehicle shelters is recognised when the related
advertisements appear before the public.
Revenue is stated net of agency commission
and rebate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 85 R R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBET - HRBEWITE)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

0)

p)

RoadShow Holdings Limited

Revenue recognition (continued)

iv) Fee income from media sales management
and administrative services is recognised
when the related services are rendered.

v) Signage production fees are recognised when
the related services are rendered.

vi) Income from advertising agency services is
recognised when the related services are
rendered.

vi) Revenue from sale of merchandise is
recognised when the merchandise is delivered
at the customers’ premises which is taken to
be the point in time when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership of the merchandise
have been transferred to the customers.
Revenue is stated net of trade discounts.

viii) Interest income is recognised as it accrues
using the effective interest method.

ix) Dividend income from unlisted investments is
recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment is established.

Leased assets and operating leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a
series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the
Group determines that the arrangement conveys
a right to use a specific asset or assets for an
agreed period of time in return for a payment or
a series of payments. Such a determination is
made based on an evaluation of the substance of
the arrangement and is regardless of whether the
arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

Leases which do not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.

Where the Group has the use of assets held
under operating leases, payments made under
the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal
instalments over the accounting periods covered
by the lease term, except where an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the leased assets.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

q) Employee benefits

i)

ii)

Short term employee benefits and
contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual
leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-
monetary benefits are accrued in the year in
which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement
is deferred and the effect would be material,
these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a
capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at the grant date using the
binomial lattice model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have
to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options, the
total estimated fair value of the options is
spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will
vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed.
Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair
value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to profit or loss for the year of the
review, with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve. On the vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is adjusted
to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to
the capital reserve). The equity amount is
recognised in the capital reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is transferred
to the share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 85 R R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBET - HRBEWITE)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

r

RoadShow Holdings Limited

Translation of foreign currencies

The functional currency of the Company and
subsidiaries which operate in Hong Kong is Hong
Kong dollar while that for subsidiaries which
operate in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)
is Renminbi. The presentation currency of the
Company is Hong Kong dollar.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and
losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was determined.

The results of operations outside Hong Kong are
translated into Hong Kong dollar at the exchange
rates approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance
sheet items are translated into Hong Kong dollar
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in
the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside Hong
Kong, the cumulative amount of the exchange
differences recognised in equity which relate to
that operation is included in the calculation of the
profit or loss on disposal.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

s) Related parties
(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

() has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s
parent.

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

() The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a Group of which
the other entity is a member).

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the Group or an entity related to the
Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected to
influence, or be influenced by, that person in their
dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 85 R R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBET - HRBEWITE)

1. Significant accounting policies (continued) 1. EEEFBK (&)

98

RoadShow Holdings Limited

t) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group’s various lines of
business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of

The Group is principally engaged in the provision
of media sales and management and administrative
services for Multi-media On-board (“MMOB” or “BUS-
TV”), transit vehicle exteriors and interiors advertising
businesses and the operation of media advertising
management services through marketing advertising
spaces on transit vehicle exteriors, interiors, shelters
and outdoor signages and the provision of advertising
agency services.

Turnover represents income from media sales
and management and administrative services
and advertising agency services, net of agency
commission and rebate.
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3. Other revenue and other net income

3. Hittl AR H fth W55 7% 88

2011 2010
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Other revenue Hpug X
Interest income from listed available-for-sale KRB LHm At HEBKEZESN
debt securities FE WA 3,205 2,784
Other interest income HF 2 WA 6,610 9,240
Interest income from financial assets not at RELFEBEREAAEE
fair value through profit or loss FIERMNEMEENF E WA 9,815 12,024
Sales of merchandise EmEE 9,772 9,133
Sundry revenue Hbg A 63 1,808
19,650 22,965
Other net income Hi W F 5
Exchange gain ERA € 6,292 8,072
(Loss)/gain on disposal of fixed assets HEBTEEE (FR) i (105) 176
6,187 8,248
25,837 31,213

4. Impairment loss of other non-current

financial assets

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group
requested AdSociety Daye Advertising Company
Limited (the “investee”) to repay the loans totalling
$70,154,000 due to the Group upon expiry. However,
the investee had defaulted on the agreed repayment
schedule. In addition, the Group has undertaken
various discussions with the investee to restructure
the investment in and loans to the investee. Up to
the date of these financial statements, the Group
has not been able to obtain a viable proposa
from the investee. The Group has engaged PRC
lawyers and issued legal letter to the investee to
demand settlement. Up to the date of these financial
statements, no settlement has been made and the
loans are overdue.

4,

HtbkRBemMEEREEE

RBE-T——F+-_BA=+—BILFE &
SEZXREEEHAEEERRAA(HE
BRAR DR ReEEERAEENE KK
70,154,0007C ° AT » WK EBE R A RBEHBE
MERBERER - N AEEEHEFIRE
NEETZ R NBEEARNBEREQRINK
BRHETHIEERANER - HEATHHRE
HES WIRE DRI M ARGERMASBEIRETITH
B A£EECZRETEHZMICAKEERD
AIE AR HGEREERIE - BHEAM IR
REH WREQARAABBEAWKE  ME
AOEE -

BABERERAT —B——FFR
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4. Impairment loss of other non-current 4. HtvFERBERMEEREBEESR @)

financial assets (continued)

The default of loan repayment has instigated a re-
assessment of the recoverable amount of the
unlisted available-for-sale equity interest in and the
outstanding amounts due from the investee totalling
$109,606,000. Based on the latest information
available to the Group, it is considered that the
prospect of any significant recovery of the investment
and outstanding amounts is highly uncertain.
Accordingly, additional impairment losses of
$109,606,000 have been made against the Group’s

NEBREWIZE QB ARAEMEE KM E N E K
BARKIELT A EREREREIRERD
A H) R (8 38 Z B £ 109,606,000 JT & 7] 4 1 3#E
TEHTE - BEAEEMSHNER - JHKE
ZERERREERBENRSIHE THEE
gt REEER T FREERERERRH
BE HLTHEEERAANERRERFEERE R
A R IE1E B8 SNRE B 18 109,606,000 7T + &
BR-—ZE—— &S+ -_A=1+—HHZZEEE
HEREUREEE

investment in, loans to and amount due from the
investee as follows, resulting in full impairment losses
made on such assets as at 31 December 2011:

Gross balance Impairment losses Net balance

with the investee HEBR with the

at At At investee at

31 December 1 January 31 December 31 December

2011 2011 Addition 2011 2011

RZE--F RZE--F

tZA=t-H tZB=1-H

HRRELT R=B--F RZE--F  HAHREDF

MERAE -B-A B t+=R=t-H MERTE

$000 $000 $000 $000 $000

T n n T T

Unlisted available-for-sale equity interest FrmafttiERE 143,371 119,801 23,570 143,371 -
Loans to investee LYRREDANER 70,154 - 70,154 70,154 -
Amount due from investee EUHERELNATE 15,882 - 15,882 15,882 -
229,407 119,801 109,606 229,407 -
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5. Loss before taxation 5. BR¥ATE 1A

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: BREIRIEEE Mk

2011 2010

$°000 $°000

Fr Fr

Amortisation of media assets e EEH - 205

Auditor’s remuneration % Gl 2,361 2,330
Contributions to defined contribution E R RGR KGN

retirement schemes e 1,161 1,165

Depreciation e 9,699 6,293

Impairment loss of accounts receivable EWERFREEE - 318

Impairment loss of media assets REESERERESE - 171
Impairment loss of other non-current HitERB e mEE

financial assets HERE 109,606 110,000

Operating lease charges REHEZ W
— land and buildings — T REF 2,463 3,481
— audio and visual equipment — HEEE 5,453 5,205
BB ERERAT —2——FFH 101
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6. Income tax in the consolidated income 6. JIRGEEERNWFABH

statement
a) Taxation in the consolidated income statement a) IRGEBBEROBES
represents:
2011 2010
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Current tax REABE
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for RKEEEBRER
the current year BB 11,745 9,162
Under-provision in respect of prior years BEFERETE 100 =
11,845 9,162
Provision for PRC income tax HEIFT S B A - 260
Over-provision in respect of prior years BAFERERE - (401)
_____ - (141)
11,845 9,021
Deferred tax ELEHIE
Reversal and origination of temporary TR ERMNERE R
differences "R 1,018 (752)
Income tax expense FEHIH 12,863 8,269

PRC.
b) Reconciliation between tax expense and b) RERANERFTENBH ERIEETEEN
accounting loss at applicable tax rates: R
2011 2010
$°000 $°000
Fr Fr
Loss before taxation B Fi Al 5 18 (30,881) (48,886)
Notional tax on loss before taxation, PR AIEBIRZET
calculated at the rates applicable to REKLEEERARE
profits in the tax jurisdictions STENEERE (5,063) (8,205)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses FAHlREZNHRESE 18,133 18,287
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BARFMBANRETE (1,815) (2,810)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AERAFEEBENTESE 1,608 1,088
Withholding tax in respect of interest FMEW A
income BB - 260
Under/(over)-provision in prior BEEEBRETZR
years (HBER) B 1E 100 (401)
Others Hth (100) 50
Actual tax expense ERFERS 12,863 8,269

102 RoadShow Holdings Limited

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for the

year is calculated at 16.5% (2010: 16.5%) of the
estimated assessable profits for the year. Taxation
for subsidiaries in the PRC is charged at the
appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the

AEENBENGHBEIRERAEE
B ERHAMN16.5% (T —TF :
16.5% )5t & o 1A B & fft /B 2 B A 5 1R B
BERPBERTHNERR RS -
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7. Directors’ remuneration 7. EEMe

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section BEBB(RBIEFYE1611ER Em#HE AR
161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the EoEEMeBRBELT
Listing Rules is as follows:

2011
Salaries, Retirement
Directors’ allowances Discretionary scheme
fees  and benefits bonuses contributions Total
e 2R RRGHE
Exne RER BEEA 3 @t
$°000 $°000 $°000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr Tr Tr Fr
Executive Director UITEE
Mr Alex MO Tik Sang EHELE 90 1,606 1,488 12 3,196
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak BAEEELT 126 - - - 126
Ms Winnie NG mElLt 150 - - - 150
Mr YUNG Wing Chung AXkBEE 178 - - - 178
Mr MAK Chun Keung BiREEE 20 - - - 90
Mr John Anthony MILLER HEREE 90 - - - 20
Mr Edmond HO Tat Man MEXLE 90 - - - 90
Independent Non- ByEHT
Executive Directors E=
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI HEREL 170 - - - 170
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung EX Rk 174 - - - 174
Professor Stephen RCREHR
CHEUNG Yan Leung 170 - - - 170
1,328 1,606 1,488 12 4,434
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7. Directors’ remuneration (continued) 7. EEM &)
2010
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and Discretionary scheme
fees benefits bonuses  contributions Total
e 2R RIRGHE
EEX ik REF BiETA BE @5t
$°000 $°000 $°000 $000 $°000
Tr Tr T Tr T
Executive Director HTES
Mr Alex MO Tik Sang EHELE 90 1,606 1,003 12 2,711
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Dr John CHAN Cho Chak REEFEL 126 = — — 126
Ms Winnie NG mEfLt 150 - - = 150
Mr YUNG Wing Chung AXBEE 178 = = = 178
Mr Anthony NG mXELRE 33 - - - 33
Mr MAK Chun Keung BiRBEE 90 - - - 90
Mr John Anthony MILLER HEREE ] - - - 90
Mr Edmond HO Tat Man MEXLE 90 - - - 90
Independent Non- ByEHT
Executive Directors E=
Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI #EREL 170 - - - 170
Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung EX Rk 174 - - = 174
Professor Stephen RECRHR
CHEUNG Yan Leung 170 - - - 170
1,361 1,606 1,003 12 3,982
8. Individuals with highest emoluments 8. EEfE AL
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, L BEEMEATHEE—R(ZE—FF : —
one (2010: one) is a Director whose emoluments are ZVEE  ZBEMERWE7HE - HHBMNWA
disclosed in note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments (—E—ZF : MEZ)BReME A TS @5
in respect of the other four (2010: four) individuals HHmF

are as follows:

2011 2010

$°000 $’000

Fr Fr

Salaries, allowances and other benefits e RUREMER 5,021 4,622
Retirement scheme contributions RIRGH IR 48 48
5,069 4,670
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8. Individuals with highest emoluments
(continued)

The emoluments of the four (2010: four) individuals
with the highest emoluments are within the following
bands:

8. BEM& AL w

ZNE(—T—ZF : OR)RSMHe A THH
ENFWT

Number of individuals

AH
2011 2010
$°000 $°000
$Nil — $1,000,000 £t - 1,000,0007T -
$1,000,001 — $1,500,000 1,000,001 7t - 1,500,0007T 4 3

9. Loss attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company

The consolidated loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company includes a loss of
$131,797,000 (2010: $3,336,000) which has been
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company.

10.Dividends

a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the year:

9. ARFARREMEEE

KA RAELHGEEERERE £ 5%
131,797,000t K B #B(Z T — T F:
3,336,000 T) ' WLEEE R AR R MBI RE
WIEHEE °

10.R 8
a) AFEEMEAARRNRE :

2011 2010
$°000 $°000
Fr T
Final dividend proposed after the balance REZERZEZDRKRFRE
sheet date of 6.11 cents per share BR611L(ZE—=F .
(2010: 4.85 cents per share) B 4.851l) 60,939 48,372

The final dividend proposed after the balance
sheet date has not been recognised as a liability
at the balance sheet date.

BED IR ARYBRE L RN

b) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of b) ERFAMERRKENLELFEENSEAT
the Company attributable to the previous year, BRERKE :
approved and paid during the year:
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Fr Fr
Final dividend in respect of the previous CRER#ERIKEN L —
financial year, approved and paid HMREERARESR
during the year, of 4.85 cents per share 485 (=2 —FF :
(2010: 1.41 cents per share) R 1.4114b) 48,372 14,063
BABERERAR “E——FFR
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11.Loss per share

106 RoadShow Holdings Limited

a) Basic loss per share
The calculation of basic loss per share is based
on the loss attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of $48,637,000
(2010: $61,641,000) and the weighted average of
997,365,332 ordinary shares (2010: 997,365,332
ordinary shares) in issue during the year.

b) Diluted loss per share
There were no dilutive potential ordinary shares
outstanding during the years ended 31 December
2011 and 2010.

12.Segment reporting

The Group manages its business by geographical
areas. In a manner consistent with the way in which
information is reported internally to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment,
the Group has identified the following two reportable
segments.

Provision of media sales and
management services

Hong Kong:

Mainland China: Provision of media advertising
agency services and design and

production of advertisements
There are no sales between the reportable segments.

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s most senior executive management monitors
the results attributable to each reportable segment on
the following bases:

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by
those segments and the expenses incurred by
those segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to
those segments.

Segment assets and liabilities include all current and

non-current assets and liabilities, respectively, which
are directly managed by the segments.

Annual Report 2011
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12.Segment reporting (continued)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable

12.98HE =

BE_Z——fk-_Z-ZTFt+-_H=1+—H

segments for the years ended 31 December 2011 IHFE - K&
and 2010 is set out below.
a) Reportable segment revenues, profit or loss, a)

assets and liabilities:

EBESBUA - BRRER - EEREE

ERDBEMBINMAT o

Hong Kong Mainland China Total
B FE KK oy
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
$°000 $000 $°000 $:000 $000 $000
Fr i Fr Tr Fr Fr
Revenue from external customers REMIEFHRA 370,556 324,060 935 1171 371,491 325,231
Other revenue and other net Htt AR E A
income/(loss) Wi/ (B8)FE 9,724 9,266 (138) 1,866 9,586 11,132
Reportable segment revenue EHIBWA 380,280 333,326 797 3,037 381,077 336,363
Reportable segment profit/(loss) SRAIBER/ (FR) 82,308 50,206  (113,531)  (115,893) (31,223) (56,687)
Interest income FIEWA - = - 30 - 30
Depreciation and amortisation KEENER
for the year B (9,279) (5,552) (165) (783) (9,444) (6,335)
Impairment loss of media assets REEEAERE - - - (171) - (171)
Impairment loss of accounts FE KBRS E R
receivable - (318) - - - (318)
Impairment loss of other non-current Bt REERERE
financial assets HEEE - -~ (109,606) (10,0000  (109,606)  (110,000)
Reportable segment assets 2RI HEE 520,434 454685 163,426 268,775 683,860 723,460
Additions to non-current segment FRERBINEEN
assets during the year HE 33,490 35,957 20 34 33,510 35,991
Reportable segment liabilities EHIPaE 123,824 69,969 520 1,119 124,344 71,088
BABEZRRERAR —E——FFH
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12. 9 BHE =

b) AEBENZHIHEEEERESAESL
BH-2RA2BUA BIARBEREEY

12.Segment reporting (continued)

b) The Group’s reportable segment liabilities
are equal to consolidated total liabilities.

Reconciliations of reportable segment revenue, BRIT @
profit or loss and assets are as follows:
2011 2010
$°000 $°000
Fr T
Revenue ['ON
Reportable segment revenue EE S ON 381,077 336,363
Unallocated other revenue and other KoBMEAMKARE G
net income R 16,251 20,081
Consolidated total operating revenue BREKE I A\BEE 397,328 356,444
2011 2010
$°000 $°000
Fr T
Profit or loss BFSEE
Reportable segment loss ERDEEE (31,223) (56,687)
Unallocated other revenue and other KoBMEAMBAR
net income Hit g %58 16,251 20,081
Unallocated head office and corporate ROBMARERER
expenses TFELH (15,909) (12,280)
Consolidated loss before taxation RARBAEE (30,881) (48,886)
2011 2010
$°000 $°000
Fr T
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets ERPMBEE 683,860 723,460
Other non-current financial assets HkEREEemERE 80,872 82,470
Unallocated head office and corporate RAOMEAREER
assets TtEEE 1,342 826
Consolidated total assets GEBEBE 766,074 806,756

108 RoadShow Holdings Limited
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13.Fixed assets

13.BEEE

The Group
RE
Audio Hardware
and visual and Furniture Leasehold Motor
equipment software and fixtures  improvements vehicles Total
YERE BRRRH BRREE HENERE RE i
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
i i r r r T
Cost: A
At 1 January 2010 R-E-Z5-f-H 164,757 2,355 1,386 1,038 2,287 171,823
Exchange adjustments ERAR - 12 31 - 87 130
Additions nE 365 368 170 400 - 1,303
Disposals HE (567) - (132) - (862) (1,561)
At 31 December 2010 R=Z-ZF+=A=+-H 164,555 2,735 1,455 1,438 1,512 171,695
Accumulated depreciation ~ RifERFERE :
and impairment losses:
At 1 January 2010 R=E-25-f-H 154,147 1,360 842 259 1,808 158,416
Exchange adjustments EHHRE - 5 21 - 73 99
Charge for the year ERE 4,512 272 299 939 271 6,293
Written back on disposal HERER (567) - (125) - (827) (1,519)
At 31 December 2010 R-E-Z5+-A=t+-H 158,092 1,637 1,037 1,198 1,325 163,289
Net book value: BEHFE:
At 31 December 2010 R=B-ZE+-A=1-H 6,463 1,098 418 240 187 8,406
The Group
rE
Audio Hardware
and visual and Furniture Leasehold Motor
equipment software and fixtures  improvements vehicles Total
FERE BRRES GHRREE HENEEE RE h
$'000 $'000 $°000 $000 $000 $000
i i T Fr T i
Cost: B
At 1 January 2011 RZE--%£-f-H 164,555 2,735 1,455 1,438 1,512 171,695
Exchange adjustments ERAE - 12 25 - - 37
Additions RE 65,574 714 242 - - 66,530
Disposals HE (390) - (55) - (1,512) (1,957)
At 31 December 2011 RZB--F+ZA=+-H 229,739 3,461 1,667 1,438 - 236,305
Accumulated depreciation B FTERBEFE
and impairment losses:
At 1 January 2011 R-B-—-%-F-H 158,092 1,637 1,037 1,198 1,325 163,289
Exchange adjustments ERRE - 7 23 - - 30
Charge for the year ERTE 8,951 377 131 240 - 9,699
Written back on disposal HEREE (39) - (21) - (1,325) (1,385)
At 31 December 2011 RZZE-—-&£+ZA=t-H 167,004 2,021 1,170 1,438 - 171,633
Net book value: RERE
At 31 December 2011 RZZ--f+ZA=t-H 62,735 1,440 497 - - 64,672
BABERERAR “E——FFR
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. s
14.Media assets 14.BREE
The Group
rEE
2011 2010
$°000 $°000
Fr T
Cost: R :
At 1 January W—A—H 2,053 2,030
Exchange adjustments BN AR - 23
Disposal HE (2,053) =
At 31 December R+=ZB=+—8H - 2,053
Accumulated amortisation: 2oty
At 1 January W—A—8 2,053 1,658
Exchange adjustments XA - 19
Amortisation for the year FREE - 205
Impairment loss REEE - 171
Written back on disposal SRR E (2,053) —
At 31 December R+=BA=+—8 - 2,053
Net book value: BREFEE
At 31 December R+=ZB=+—H - -

15.Non-current and current prepayments 15. kRBRABFENSRIE

Non-current and current prepayments consist of ERBERBENREEREEEREEENIR
deposits for purchase of fixed assets and advance CRETT_FE_T——_FHHANEES
payments for concession and rights for advertising Wk EEMABLENES REBE BRED
and media programme placement on transit vehicles FARR o R B FIA Mid B sk R RME -

and transit network furniture for periods from 2002 to
2012. The amounts are neither past due nor impaired.

16.Investments in subsidiaries 16.MBARRE
The Company
AAFE
2011 2010
$°000 $°000
Fr T
Unlisted shares, at cost kLETRG  BE 62,835 62,835
The following list contains the particulars of TRIFIMBARNER - BREBIEAN - FT
subsidiaries. The class of shares held is ordinary FROENS R RER -

unless otherwise stated.
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16.MIB A RIKRE «»

All of these are controlled subsidiaries as defined BT B A F133 A Bt 5 1(d) BT 5E 25 59 52 4% ) B
under note 1(d) and have been consolidated into the BAR HEZEEHALRKBEMBERERALS
Group’s financial statements. iHE -

16.Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of Attributable equity

Place of issued and paid interest (%)
incorporation/ up capital BERR(EDT)
Name of company operation BRTREHR direct indirect Principal activity
DR B ML %tk 2 BRAFE =E: A TEER
AdSociety Advertising Hong Kong $2 - 100 Investment holding
Agency Limited % 27T REER
AEEBREARLA
Bus Focus Limited The British Virgin US$100 - 60 Provision of media sales service
Islands/Hong Kong 100X 7T for advertising on transit vehicle
KERLEE /BB shelters
RUEEBHFRESFEEH
REHERY
Bus Power Limited Hong Kong $1 - 100 Provision of media sales service
E) 17T for advertising on transit vehicle
exteriors
RUEEERHEGHNTREN
REEERS
Cyberstop Limited The British Virgin US$1 - 100 Holder of the registered design
Islands/Hong Kong 127 and patent in relation to cyber
KERLHE /B8 bus stops
BEABEBE T HMEMRT
REA
KM-Vision Limited Hong Kong $10,000 - 100 Dormant
BB 10,000 ¢ Emex
LW-Vision Limited Hong Kong $10,000 - 100 Dormant
BB 10,000 ¢ EEex
MB-Vision Limited Hong Kong $2 - 100 Dormant
BB 27 EEex
Road Publications Limited Hong Kong $2 - 100 Trading of bus souvenirs
BB 27 ReBrRemHEEHR
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16.Investments in subsidiaries (continued) 16.MBRRIKRE »

Particulars of

Attributable equity

Place of issued and paid interest (%)
incorporation/ up capital EERE(EAL)
Name of company operation BRTREAR direct indirect Principal activity
DR ERE TR, %tk 2 RAFE =E: A TEER
RoadShow Advertising The PRC US$500,000 = 100 Provision of media advertising
(Beijing) Company Limited ~ HE 500,000 %=t agency service and design and
(limited liability company) production of advertisements
BABEE(LR)ERAF REEREEAERER
(BREELR) EERTERME
RoadShow Creations Limited Hong Kong $2 - 100 Trading of bus souvenirs
i) 27 ReBTLRHEEY
RoadShow Media The British Virgin US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Holdings Limited Islands/Hong Kong EY REZR
RERZHEE/BB
RoadShow Media Limited Hong Kong $2 - 100 Provision of media sales &
BB 27T management services for
advertising on transit vehicle
interiors and for BUS-TV
business
RUTEEHERAT
BEURELTERERH
REHEREERY
RoadShow Productions The British Virgin US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Holdings Limited Islands/Hong Kong EY REER
RERZHE /B
RoadShow Productions Hong Kong $2 — 100 Events production and
Limited il 27T production of content for
BUS-TV systems
HHAFRAEECLER
ZBEAR
RoadShow Resources Limited  The British Virgin US$1 100 - Investment holding
Islands/Hong Kong 157 REER
RERLHE/ B
RoadVision Holdings The British Virgin US$1 — 100 Investment holding
(China) Limited Islands/Hong Kong 127 REER
RERLHS/ BB
RoadVision Holdings Limited The British Virgin Us$2 - 100 Investment holding
Islands/Hong Kong EYH REER

112 RoadShow Holdings Limited
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16.Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of

16.MIB A RIKRE «»

Attributable equity
interest (%)

Place of issued and paid
incorporation/ up capital BhERR(EDL)
Name of company operation BRTREAR direct indirect Principal activity
DR ERE TR, %tk 2 RAFE =E: A TEER
RoadVision (Beijing) Limited The British Virgin US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Islands/Hong Kong 1£57% REER
RERLZEE/BE
RoadVision (Shanghai) Limited  The British Virgin US$1 - 100 Investment holding
Islands/Hong Kong 157 REER
KBRLHE/BE
RSG Resources Limited Hong Kong $2 - 100 Provision of employment
e 27T agency services
REBEDN RS
SB-Vision Limited Hong Kong $10,000 - 95 Dormant
5B 10,0007 Emex
Beijing Ding Yi Tang Artiste The PRC RMB500,000 - 100 Provision of artiste agency
Management Co., Ltd. HE AR# 500,000 T service
(limited liability company BEHEALEARE
(wholly-owned by legal
person))
TREEEESKLFRAA
(BREADRCEABE))
Disposed during the year (see note 28):
REALE(ZHZE28) .
Expert Plus Holdings Limited ~ The British Virgin US$1 — 100 Investment holding
(“Expert Plus”) Islands/Hong Kong EH REER
RERZHE /B
Shanghai Yingte Consulting The PRC RMB1,236,000 = 68 Investment holding
Company Limited (sino- H AR# 1,236,000 T REZR
foreign co-operative
joint venture) (“Shanghai
Yingte”)
LEERHAERAE
(PHEfREL)
(TEEER]D)
Shanghai Yafei Advertising The PRC RMB600,000 - 51 Provision of media advertising
Company Limited e A K™ 600,000 7T agency service and design and

(limited liability company)

(“Shanghai Yafei”)
LBERESERAR

(BREFEQR) ([ EBERD)

BABERERAT

production of advertisements
RUFBEEAERBR
EERTRAE

—E——FEH



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 85 R R B o

(Expres

sed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(RBBETRIN  FRBRIHE)

17.0

ther non-current financial assets 17. 5 tbkERBERMEE
The Group
AEH
2011 2010
$°000 $’000
Fr T
Unlisted available-for-sale equity interest, BREARBEEIES RN
at cost less impairment losses FLEmatHERRE - 23,570
Loans to investee WRELRER - 97,218
Amount due from investee WK R E D RRIE - 15,882
Available-for-sale debt securities, at fair value Z2QABEEIRNAIHEEER
(listed outside Hong Kong) BH(BBENLS) 80,872 82,470
80,872 219,140

a)

b)

114 RoadShow Holdings Limited

Unlisted available-for-sale equity interest, at
cost less impairment losses

At 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group’s
investment in an unlisted investee was classified
as available-for-sale equity interest as the Group
does not have significant influence over the
investee.

At 31 December 2011 and 2010, the available-
for-sale equity interest was determined to be
impaired (see note 4). Impairment losses on
unlisted available-for-sale equity interest of
$143,371,000 have been recognised as at 31
December 2011 (2010: $119,801,000).

Loans to investee

At 31 December 2011, loans to investee of
$70,154,000 were individually determined to be
impaired and impairment losses of $70,154,000
have been made (see note 4).

At 31 December 2010, loans to investee were
unsecured, carried interest ranging from 5.31% to
7.47% p.a.. The loans were neither past due nor
impaired.

Annual Report 2011

a)

b)

BRARRMEBREIRNF LT AHEE
Y
ARASRERBEEEAFLEEATE
N RBE——FR-_FT—FF+_H
=t—B ARERFLTERERRN
REWDBRA S BRE -

RIEBE——FR_ZB-—ZBFF+_A=+—
A At ERERETE RBERNZE
4) R_FB——F+-_A=+—R B#®
143,371,000 7L &) & T # 1R & 1 7] AR 42
—T—Z% :119,801,0007C) °

HWEREATDER
RZEBE——F+-A=1+—8 78K
BRI/ 70,154,000 T E R E R EE A
BYRME - WE L 70,154,000 7T 6 R E
BE(RHES) -

R-E—BET-A=+—R KTFEE
ERARNERARER - & E %5 31%
E7.47% 58 RERRLEAHALR
B -



17.0ther non-current financial assets

17. 5 FERBEREE o

(continued)
c) Amount due from investee c) BEWREHRENTRE
At 31 December 2011, amount due from investee R_ZE—-——F+t 4= + — A"
of $15,882,000 was determined to be impaired 15,882, 000 JTT Y FE W 82 1R & X I SR IA #E /8
and impairment losses of $15,882,000 have been RATRE  LBIEL 15,882.0007EE’J
made (see note 4). ﬁﬁ%ﬁ(ﬁﬂﬁé‘ﬂl) °
At 31 December 2010, amount due from investee RZZE—ZFTF+_-_A=+—H  EhREEK
was unsecured, interest free and had no fixed BERAIREREER  2EREETEEX
repayment terms. The amount was neither past B ZFATEBHKHRRE -
due nor impaired.
d) Available-for-sale debt securities, at fair value d) H?’L‘\ AEEIRNATHEEEEE S
The listed debt securities are issued by corporate mMEKESBEEFTRN FBBB+ZE
entities with credit ratings ranging from BBB+ to AA+E’]¢%P£I§§H g
AA+.
The available-for-sale debt securities are due for ARBEEEEFIN _T—HNFR=
repayment in 2014 or 2015. —hEHHESR
18.Inventories 18.78
All of the inventories are finished goods of MAERRSREMEKS  LRAAR-FA
merchandise and are expected to be recovered within e o
one year.
The amount of inventories recognised as an expense ERAXLNFESEMT
is as follows:
The Group
AEH
2011 2010
$°000 $°000
T Fr
Carrying amount of inventories sold EHEFEREE 6,498 6,304
Write-down of inventories FEMR 19 —
Reversal of write-down of inventories FEMRRER - (455)
6,517 5,849
BABERERATF “E——FFR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBET - HRBEWITE)

19.Amounts due from/(to) group companies

a)

116 RoadShow Holdings Limited

The amount due from ultimate holding company
is unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms
of repayment. The amount is neither past due nor
impaired.

The amounts due to subsidiaries are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment, except for amounts due to certain
subsidiaries of $72,493,000 (2010: $Nil), which
have no fixed terms of repayment but are not
expected to be repaid within twelve months of the
balance sheet date.

The amounts due from subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms
of repayment but are not expected to be repaid
within twelve months of the balance sheet date.
The amounts are neither past due nor impaired,
except for amounts due from certain subsidiaries
of $126,669,000, which are determined to be
impaired and impairment losses of $126,669,000
have been made.

The amounts due from/(to) fellow subsidiaries
are unsecured, interest-free, repayable on
demand and represents normal trade receivables
and payables. The amounts due from fellow
subsidiaries are neither past due nor impaired.

Annual Report 2011

19. B /() & B 2 RIFIE

a)

EMERZERARIFKALSERR 28R
BETERY - ZHXRALBBHINE °

BRIEME TH B LQEM72,493,000 (=
T—2F  B)TEBTENS  HETESH
REZEBR T _EAREEN BB
NAIFEAEKF B REETENS -

BRBARRBAERF 28 LE
BrERf HAEHEREER =
MAREEZE - BEKETHE A AW
126,669,000 LW E E AR E * W E E
126,669,000 7T KR EE BN - ZE B
I 48 8 B SR (B o

Y/ (EN)BARMBRARARELRER
B AREREKEE RFR—K
BEHREREMNER - ZFRER R E
DA FIRY BB HFRE -



20.Accounts receivable 20. FE W BR FX

Details of the ageing analysis of accounts receivable WS E - 3 E I8 (E R ek = e E R E W EE
that is neither individually nor collectively considered SNER OB T ¢
to be impaired at the balance sheet date are as

follows:
The Group
AEH
2011 2010
$°000 $’000
Fr Fr
Neither past due nor impaired b £ 380 B =5 0RL B 48,239 40,769
Less than one month past due mPLR—@EA 18,809 20,291
One to two months past due BH—-ZWEA 10,872 9,696
Two to three months past due BHWE=MEA 33,106 4,228
More than three months past due mYPRBA=@EA 6,226 3,318
117,252 78,302

All of the accounts receivable are expected to be
recovered within one year.

Impairment loss is written off against accounts
receivable when the recovery of the amount is
remote. At 31 December 2011, none of the Group’s
accounts receivable (2010: $318,000) was individually
determined to be impaired. At 31 December 2010,
the individually impaired receivables related to
customers that were in financial difficulties and
management assessed that all of their receivables
are not expected to be recovered. Consequently, an
impairment loss is provided for and written off against
the accounts receivable directly. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.

The Group’s credit policy is set out in note 27(a) to
the financial statements.

FHPTA YRS AR —F Rk E -

FRRESBERETA  BEBERERER
hHEE e R—ZE——F+=-A=+—8 #HE&E
REBNEWER(ZZE—ZF :318,0007T)
BEHEEEEERBE R-_ET—FTF+_H
=+—8 - &R E A FE R IE TR R R B R
RENEFEH MEEBITHRBHEMA
FEUWRIES Rk E - Rt - sHRBEREL
RERERTEEME AEEBTABFEZE
BHOTRAEAESR -

3 4 38 H slOR(E BO IR MR IR TS B % & ARl 3 4R
BREHENEFAR -

ERHERRENEBEFIRELTESE TR AKHE
BRERMEECENBUYUETPEH - REBHE
Rip EEEHEHNZFERNEELRL
AMREAUNE - RZFERDEERALH
WE - MBEASRETHEBELRERE A&
B RF A % F A RRE MR A e

ARENEERRERNPBRERME27()

BABERERAT —B——FFR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBET - HRBEWITE)

21.Pledged bank deposits

Pursuant to certain licence agreements between
subsidiaries of the Company and certain fellow
subsidiaries, the subsidiaries have provided bank
guarantees in favour of the fellow subsidiaries
regarding the subsidiaries’ due performance and
payment under the respective licence agreements.
The Company has pledged bank deposits of
$41,200,000 (2010: $41,200,000) to banks for the
bank guarantees issued.

22.Bank deposits and cash

21. B HBITER

BEAAGBMBAREETFTRRENB AR
WETHSERS: WBARCREZERE
AERINREFBERITEBZ THEERK
B EHUZSRAEAWNBAR AT Z AR
TER - ARAIGRABEHNETERRRT
3 4R 17 7 741,200,000 0 (=T — T & :
41,200,000 7T ) °

2. BTEAREE

The Group The Company
AEH AT
2011 2010 2011 2010
$’000 $’000 $’000 $’000
Tr T Fr Fr
Cash at bank and in hand RITEREES 106,673 94,150 1,486 10,954
Bank deposits with original BRI EA
maturities within three =ERARN
months ROTER 49,360 46,886 - 35,046
Cash and cash equivalents FEZEBRERER
for the purpose of cash MENRER
flow statement BEZEEY 156,033 141,036
Bank deposits with original REHBEA
maturities over three HBBE=@EAKN
months RITHER 272,038 242,485 173,319 147,765
428,071 383,521 174,805 193,765

23.Accounts payable

Details of the ageing analysis of accounts payable at
the balance sheet date are as follows:

23. B ER X
NEER - ERNEXOERDITEBENT -

The Group
AEHE
2011 2010
$’000 $’000
Fr T
Due within one month — B A REH 4,370 4,729

All of the accounts payable are expected to be
settled within one year.
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24.Income tax in the consolidated balance
sheet

a) Current taxation in the consolidated balance
sheet represents:

4. RGEEERBRNTEHR

a) JIRGAEEREBERNAMBIER

The Group
AEHE
2011 2010
$’000 $°000
Fr Fr
Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax TEERBRNEHR
for the year B E 11,745 9,162
Provisional Profits Tax paid EEHAEH (9,419) (1,072)
2,326 8,090
PRC income tax payable R FREMEH 260 260
2,586 8,350
Reconciliation to consolidated balance sheet: REGEEEBBFZHEK -
The Group
rEH
2011 2010
$°000 $’000
Fr Fr
Current tax recoverable recognised in the REAEESBRERN
consolidated balance sheet JE W A B i 78 215 —
Current tax payable recognised in the REEEEEBERERN
consolidated balance sheet FEAF AR EA B 18 (2,801) (8,350)
(2,586) (8,350)
BABEZERERLR —E——FFH
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBET - HRBEWITE)

24.Income tax in the consolidated balance 24.53|RGEEEEBRNAEHR @
sheet (continued)

b) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised: b) ERIELEKEEE (BE):
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) REEEABRNERANEEREESE
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and S (AE)WARIHRRNENREEIT

the movements during the year are as follows:

The Group
£33

Depreciation

allowances in

excess of

related
depreciation Tax losses Others Total

BHABETE
HiTEES RBER Hit o
$000 $000 $000 $000
Tr Fr Tr Fr
At 1 January 2010 R-ZE-ZE5-f—H (1,406) 4,625 10 3,229

Credited/(charged) to profit TEBEHEATA/
or loss (51%) 678 84 (10) 752
At 31 December 2010 R-Z-ZF+-A=1+-H (728) 4,709 - 3,981
At 1 January 2011 RZE——F—-H—H (728) 4,709 - 3,981
Credited/(charged) to HEBEAFA/
profit or loss (51%) (5,990) 4,972 - (1,018)
Exchange adjustments ERTESE - 16 - 16
At 31 December 2011 RZZE-——%+ZA=1-H (6,718) 9,697 - 2,979
Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance RNEAEEARBRREANSE
sheet:
The Group
AEE

2011 2010
$’000 $°000
T ¥
Net deferred tax assets EEBIEEEFH 3,060 4,067
Net deferred tax liabilities EEBEESEFHE (81) (86)
2,979 3,981
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24.Income tax in the consolidated balance 24.35RGEEEEBRNWAEBH »
sheet (continued)

c) Deferred tax assets not recognised: c) REZNELHEEE :
In accordance with the accounting policy set BREMFIMASENSAERE ARE
out in note 1(m), the Group and the Company ARG R AR BB AREHRA A
have not recognised deferred tax assets of NEBEBENARERRBN  HAKHE
$12,209,000 (2010: $11,128,000) and $9,894,000 KA 2 B3 & 55 573,836,000 (=&
(2010: $8,574,000) in respect of cumulative tax —Z % :66,278,0007T ) & 59,963,000 7T
losses of $73,836,000 (2010: $66,278,000) and (ZZE—ZF :51,062,0007T ) B 2 5 Fi
$59,963,000 (2010: $51,962,000), respectively, % E E R 12,209,000 0(Z & — & F -
as it is not probable that future taxable profits 11,128,0007T ) % 9,894,000 (= F — %
against which the losses can be utilised will be F 8,674,000 L) MBELEHIBEE - 5
available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity. EERBRBERITHEEOCERRE - EH
The tax losses do not expire under the current tax #1308,0007T(= & — T £ : 2,265,000
legislation except for an amount of the Group of TO) R R R EF A EM

$308,000 (2010: $2,265,000) which will expire in
the coming five years.

25.Equity settled shared-based 25. AR BRA R H R 5

transactions

The Company had a share option scheme (the RARHA—BERETE([ZarEl]) - Zat
“Scheme”) which was adopted on 7 June 2001 ER—_ZET—FAAELHERM - Bt - AQ
whereby the Directors of the Company are ANEEEREARNERFRAEERE(RER
authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of SEAEMARMNES ) ERATTRBRAAFRNDD
the Group, including directors of any company in the BRE BOHEREETREARE-—REARQ
Group, to take up options to subscribe for shares in AIERRET - ZFAEMNBRBAATE B
the Company. Each option gives the holder the right RZZE——FXARAER °

to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company.
The Scheme was valid and effective for a period of
ten years and expired on 6 June 2011.

No option was granted during the year and there FATERLERE TR_Z——FR=_F
were no outstanding options at 31 December 2011 —ZEF+-RA=+—H BECARTENE
and 2010. PR HE o

BABERERAT —B——FFH 121
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBET - HRBEWITE)

26.Capital and reserves 26. RAEARRES
a) Movements in components of equity a) ERBEANBINES
The reconciliation between the opening and REEREER AR S B EBRE
closing balances of each component of the BROHRINRERREH R - ARAK
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the Bz BRI DR AFEE T REARED
consolidated statement of changes in equity. BHFBEHIMAT ¢

Details of the changes in the Company’s individual
components of equity between the beginning and
the end of the year are set out below:

The Company AT
Retained
profits/
Share Share Contributed  (accumulated
capital premium surplus losses) Total
RERB7/
T BRAEE -t (REE#) @it
$7000 $000 $7000 $'000 $'000
r r Fr r r
Balance at 1 January 2010 R-Z-Z5-A-HNER 99,737 531,769 62,635 25,082 719,223
Changes in equity for 2010 “E-TEEREE:
Total comprehensive income rEE2ERE
for the year k] - - - (3,336) (3,336)
Dividends approved in respect of AL EEEHER
the previous year RE - - - (14,063) (14,063)
Balance at 31 December 2010 W=-Z-FE+-A=1+-AK
and 1 January 2011 “E--F-f-RNEH 99,737 531,769 62,635 7,683 701,824
Changes in equity for 2011: ER--ERREE:
Total comprehensive income rEE2AWE
for the year a5 - - - (181,797 (131,797
Dividends approved in respect R L EECHER
of the previous year RE - - - (48,372) (48,372)
Balance at 31 December 2011 HW=ZE--£+-F=1-H
e 99,737 531,769 62,635 (172,486) 521,655
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26.Capital and reserves (continued)

c)

26. RARHHES @

b) Share capital b) BF
2011 2010
Number Number
of shares of shares
RHEEE BRHER
’000 $’000 ’000 $°000
T Fr it Fr
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of $0.1 HRO0.17TH
each EER 10,000,000 1,000,000 10,000,000 1,000,000

Issued and fully paid: ERTREMR :

At 31 December R+=A=+-—-H 997,365 99,737 997,365 99,737
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to TREREEABRBRAREEIRAOKE -
receive dividends as declared from time to time WEEREARAIRREAE LEFE —RK
and are entitled to one vote per share at general MIFE—Z - MELRBREARATNFNGBE
meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares EMsHZERSER -
rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

Nature and purpose of reserves c) HESNMEERRAE

i) Share premium i) BREGEE
The application of the share premium account BN aERNERIARNREHEEM
is governed by sections 150 and 157 of the RIE150 R 157 G RBRE—NN—F
Company’s Articles of Association and the CREDEVFTIRR »
Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

ii) General reserve i) —REE

General reserve is provided by each of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries of 10% of their net
profit after tax, based on the subsidiary’s PRC
statutory financial statements.

The general reserve can be used to set off
any accumulated losses or converted into
paid-up capital of the respective subsidiary.

AEBEZTEMBARAHEARENER
AR R BRI R AT H A BRI AT
FEI10% BA —REE -

—REFEFBTAREEEM R ERNE
BERRMBARNEMRRA -

BABERERAT —B——FFR
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(BREBETRN

YRBEIE)

26.Capital and reserves (continued)

c) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

iif)

iv)

vi)

124 RoadShow Holdings Limited

Contributed surplus

Pursuant to a group reorganisation in 2001,
the Company became the holding company
of the Group. The excess of the consolidated
net assets represented by the shares acquired
over the nominal value of the shares issued
by the Company in exchange under the
reorganisation in 2001 was transferred to
contributed surplus. Under the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, contributed surplus is
available for distribution to shareholders.

Other reserve

In 2007, the Group entered into an agreement
with a fellow subsidiary to acquire the
remaining 8% equity interests in a subsidiary,
KM-Vision Limited at a consideration of
$1,211,000, resulting in a premium of
$605,000. The additional investment was
accounted for as an equity transaction and
the premium was recognised directly in
shareholders’ equity.

Fair value reserve

The fair value reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of
available-for-sale debt securities held at
the balance sheet date and is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out
in note 1(e).

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of
operations outside Hong Kong. The reserve is
dealt with in accordance with the accounting
policy set out in note 1(r).
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26. RARFHEE W

c) RESHHEERAZ®
iii) B E e

RE= Tf*ﬁmﬁléﬁ ZN/NETND4
RAREERER cIRARBAERER
%h%%k@&ﬁ$ AE—EF—F
BRiEEEAEERIRMETORNDE
B ZF5RRCRABHER - REA
RE-NAN—"FREEIRE  EH
BERARE TR -

iv) Bfti#fE

AEER_ZEZ+FH-RARWBEA
RE]— B 1«/(1,211,0007{25’]&{?
U BE H A Bt B A 7] KM-Vision Limited
T8N RiE: MELERER
605,000 7T ° WL EEIMEE AR R 5
PR - HEEERNREESRER -

v) AREERE
NABEERBEEENGEEAFAENA
ﬁﬁ%1ﬁ EFAAEBENRITED
FER  WIRIRMIEE 1(e) PR & 5T BRI
L

vi) JERE

GNEE E 18 B TR A BB 7B DA O BE S B 75 3R
REENMEER =% - ZSHBRRA
BEE1 FTHM ST BRER -



26.Capital and reserves (continued)

c) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

vii) Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2011, the aggregate amount
of reserves available for distribution to
shareholders of the Company was $Nil (2010:
$70,318,000). After the balance sheet date,
the Directors proposed a final dividend of 6.11
cents per ordinary share (2010: 4.85 cents
per share), amounting to $60,939,000 (2010:
$48,372,000) (note 10(a)). The availability of
reserves for distribution of the final dividend
for the year ended 31 December 2011 is
subject to the passing of a special resolution
approving the amendment to the restriction on
dividends payout in the Company’s Bye-Laws
in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
(“AGM”) on 14 May 2012. The final dividend
has not been recognised as a liability at the
balance sheet date.

d) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, so that it can
continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the
level of risk and by securing access to finance at
a reasonable cost.

At 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group
did not have any bank borrowings. The Group
had bank deposits and cash balance as at 31
December 2011 amounting to $428,071,000
(2010: $383,521,000).

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholder returns
that might be possible with higher levels of
borrowings and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of
changes in economic conditions.

26. RARHHES @

c) HESNEERRAEG®)

vii) FEZ 8T 5 IR
R-ZBE——F+_-_A=+—H ' AHk
FARAARBRRENFEESBEATL(Z
T T4 :70,318,000T ) ° &£ E R
% EZEEZREREREESRLER
AT ZE—ZF : GREMA4.85
fill) - ##0560,939,000 T(—T—F
4 :48,372,0007T ) (K £ 10(a)) - A
TR —FRA+NOBERITZER
BREBEFAS(REBFAE]) LB
BHERRBRBMAAEBRE SR
HZBIIZBERERE  FAEER
BEHE_TE——F+=-A=+—HL
FEZABBREDREE - NEER -
RAKRBET KEREEE -

d &EFXEH
AEBEREANEEARTIREALE
RENBERBELENED  EtMEBER
BKFHSENERMREEE  ARE
BEERANRE  HESRRERHEME R
EREMERRSE RIS

RZE-——FR_ZF-—ZF+_A=+—
B 2&BTETAETEE - AEBR
T —F+-_A=Zt+-—BMETEIK
WE &4 E 428,071,000 L(ZE—FF ¢
383,521,000 7T) °

AEBREGLREHHEEARBREA R
REE  DEBSBRERLDHRBERT AT
BEM B EEEKTERFHERRR S X
MEZRRE ARG TE X EELE
REMNSCHERNRBELAR

BABERERAT —B——FFR
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27.Financial risk management and fair 7. BEAKREERAAEE
values
The Group is exposed to credit, liquidity, interest ARENHEXGRES FET*Q CRBE
rate and currency risks arising from the normal T MEREBRR - ZFRARIE TAAKE
course of its business. These risks are limited by the B EEBR MMOER B -

Group’s financial management policies and practices
described below.

a) Credit risk a) EERMR
The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to AEENEERREIEREEBKERRE
accounts receivable and other receivables and MENERR ETEBES - ERER
listed debt securities. Management has a credit —HEERER TeRBERELEER
policy in place and the exposures to these credit @ e

risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Investments are normally only in liquid securities —RmE AEEERRAIRER S ATE
quoted on a recognised stock exchange, except ARBESFERE(GRAXRBENMEILE
where entered into for long term strategic BRoN) - EREGEEFABRS BEELT
purposes. Given the high credit standing of the EHEMREHF I EREBITHER -

counterparties, management does not expect
any investment counterparty to fail to meet its

obligations.

Individual credit evaluations are performed on all AEEHMAZRKHBAE TERBEENRE
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. FPHETEBEEN G -A5B—RHETE
Customers of media sales business are generally REESXBHRFOAEES  mERE
granted credit terms of 90 days while customers EEBNEPABEEINHK —RERLT

of merchandising business either pay on delivery B0ENEMEER - AEE—RIEAT
or are generally granted credit terms of 30 to PR R

90 days. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

Bank deposits and cash at bank are normally BROERRBTHRHE - REFERREEFN
placed with licensed banks that have credit BMEERIERAEEBNFRRT - EX
ratings equal to or better than the Group. Given HEBEILAES  EEEXTEHREMS
their high credit ratings, management does not MRITEMEEBITERE -

expect any licensed bank to fail to meet its

obligations.

The Group has not provided any guarantee which REEWEREEMAESASEELEAR
would expose the Group or the Company to AEREERROER -

credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of AEBXREEEETNEERRNARE
the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from EHAK 20 EE— HHE -

accounts receivable are set out in note 20.
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27.Financial risk management and fair 27. M EEREERAABE®

values (continued)

b) Liquidity risk b) RBELAR
Individual operating entities within the Group AEBETEBRLERAEEEEINE
are responsible for their own cash management, SER BRESEFURRESNRE

including the raising of loans to cover expected
cash demands, subject to approval by the
Company’s Board of Directors when the
borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels
of authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure
that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The Company also monitors closely the cash
flows of its subsidiaries. Generally, the Company’s
subsidiaries are required to obtain the Company’s
approval for activities such as investment of
surplus cash, raising of loans and settlement of
suppliers’ invoices beyond certain limits.

At the balance sheet date, the Group’s and the
Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities
which are required to be repaid within one
year or on demand amounted to $121,462,000
(2010: $62,652,000) and $273,631,000 (2010:
$238,586,000) respectively.

FR HEFCREBEBRNOE THEE
KF - RBERGAARNEZTSNHAE - K
SENBRAEHNERERDESFTE
DNEREERAMNESHERBEEES
RMEBDSRANARESRE  MEH
REHNRBESHER -

ARRANEBENEREMNBRARNERESR
B —RME - ARFNMHMERBERMN
ReBRERE SEERNBFHEBE
TLERORERRRESEINEARAM
JE °

REEH  AEERARRMETESRE
BEAR—FRKNREREEE)SEN A
121,462,000 T(= & — Z £ : 62,652,000
7T ) &273,631,0007t(= T — T F:
238,586,0007C) °

BABERERAT —B——FFR
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27.Financial risk management and fair 27. M EEREERAABE®

values (continued)

c) F=EREpk
AEBNBRABTINEERMHERL - AR
REEHFERRNEGERE - REEIR
BERBAOMERL THRITEMNEAR
EIRREE o

c) Interest rate risk
It is the Group’s policy to monitor market
conditions closely and devise suitable strategies
against interest rate risk. The Group regularly
reviews its strategy on interest rate risk
management in the light of the prevailing market
condition.

i) FIEEEHE

TRANAEBERAARNEE B
BEERBBEONEHE -

i) Interest rate profile
The following table details the interest rate
profile of the Group’s and the Company’s
interest bearing assets and liabilities at the

balance sheet date.

2011 2010
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate p.a. rate p.a.
BRERNE BRFEFIZE
% $°000 % $’000
Btk Fr Bk Fx
The Group rEE
Fixed rate assets: BZEFFEE -
Other non-current HndER
financial assets SREE
— loans to investee — BREQNAERK - - 5.3 97,218
— available-for-sale — AHEE
debt securities BHEES 4.0 80,872 3.9 82,470
Bank deposits (including $R{TEXR(EH#EE
pledged deposits) KFF ) 2.6 362,598 1.4 330,571
443,470 510,259
Variable rate assets: FERFEEE -
Cash at bank RITHRE 0.2 26,593 0.2 53,381
The Company b NN
Fixed rate assets: BIZEFRFEE -
Bank deposits (including $R{TEM(BED
pledged deposits) AR F ) 2.1 214,519 1.1 224,011
Variable rate assets: FERFEELE -
Cash at bank RITRE 0.1 784 0.1 8,756
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27.Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

c)

Interest rate risk (continued)
ii) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2011, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 100 basis points
in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have decreased/increased
the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated
losses by approximately $233,000 (2010:
$477,000). Other components of consolidated
equity would have decreased/increased by
approximately $1,906,000 (2010: $2,619,000)
in response to the general increase/decrease
in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s loss
after tax (and accumulated losses/retained
profits) and other components of consolidated
equity that would arise assuming that the
change in interest rates had occurred at the
balance sheet date and had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments held
by the Group which expose the Group to fair
value interest rate risk at the balance sheet
date. In respect of the exposure to cash flow
interest rate risk arising from floating rate
non-derivative instruments held by the Group
at the balance sheet date, the impact on
the Group’s loss after tax (and accumulated
losses/retained profits) and other components
of consolidated equity is estimated as an
annualised impact on interest income of such
a change in interest rates. The analysis is
performed on the same basis as for 2010.

7. BEREERAABE W

c) F=EME &)

i) SEE T
R-—E——&+=-RA=+—H8" &
A RILERE MR A 100 E 2B
BRFMBEEMEBERTTE A&
BOBRBEEERRFEEGRD
/18I #4233,000(=ZE — %
447,0007T) ° FIE LR LA/ TS
CEHGRAESINE AR TR R
/18 IN491,906,000 T (= — T4 :
2,619,0007T) °

BRGRESTBETRMERER R
REHEACHREENTEAREMTS
BTA(SASERGEEAEHLAE
EFERR)  AARENRHELER
(RRFER /" REAN) Riza#E

REASERNEERMIBAZBFEIE
TESRMIAMELANRSRENEEA
B HAKERHEEBER(RREBER
SRERN) Rdr & R ) B b A ACED
MHFE  ANXEHUFSRANE
BeFEFERMbET - DTEER-FT—
ZERMANER

BABERERAT —B——FFR
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27.Financial risk management and fair 27. M EEREERAABE®
values (continued)
d) Currency risk d E¥ER
The following table details the Group’s and the TRHAVNAREBRARAHEERARFN
Company’s exposure at the balance sheet date BEEBUIINEE SBENIENEERARE
to currency risk arising from recognised assets REERARENEERR -

or liabilities denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the entity to which they

relate.
Exposure to foreign currencies I B
(expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (B E)
2011 2010
usD RMB usD RMB
EH AR EP AR
$'000 $000 $000 $'000
Fr Fr Tr Tr
The Group rEEH
Other non-current HAbIERE
financial assets SHREE 80,872 - 168,506 27,064
Bank deposits and cash ROIERERES 200,974 - 194,126 —
281,846 - 362,632 27,064
The Company FAAY-|
Bank deposits and cash BOTEREES 190,216 - 187,798 —
In addition, the Group is exposed to currency AN - REEEHUARBGEER T X E
risk arising from inter-company receivables and AR E )51 BR 69 A 5] i e AR 5 K
payables denominated in Renminbi which is not ENERMEENELERR RZT——
the functional currency of either the lender or F+-A=+—H8 QAnMHEKZEFE
the borrower. The net inter-company receivables AAREA123,651,000 T(ZF—ZFF : A
amounted to RMB123,651,000 as at 31 R# 123,734,000 7T) °
December 2011 (2010: RMB123,734,000).
The following table indicates how an appreciation TRETNEERBARBELBENAEBEY
in Renminbi against Hong Kong dollar at REBRAREFES R H M= EBE 7
the balance sheet date would have affected W E -

the Group’s results for the year and other
components of equity.
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27.Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

d) Currency risk (continued)

7. BEREERAABE G

d E¥ERGE)

)

2011 2010

Decrease in

Decrease in loss for
Increase loss for Effect on Increase  the year and Effect on
in foreign  the year and other in foreign increase other
exchange accumulated components exchange in retained  components
rate losses of equity rate profits of equity

rEE
rEE HHEM BENRD HEM
Ex BEREN EEAM Ex RREEF REER
#12 in BERY  BONRE 32 m wiEm  BONFE
$000 $000 $'000 $000
Fr Tr T T

The Group rEH

Renminbi ARE 3% 4,585 - 3% 5,215 -

A weakening in Renminbi against Hong Kong
dollar by the same percentage at the balance
sheet date would have had an equal but opposite
effect on the Group’s results for the year.

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change
in foreign exchange rate had been applied to
re-measure those financial instruments held by
the Group which expose the Group to currency
risk at the balance sheet date, including inter-
company payables and receivables within the
Group which are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currencies of the lender or the
borrower, and that all other variables, in particular
interest rates, remain constant. In this respect, it
is assumed that the linked rate between the Hong
Kong dollar and the United States dollar would be
materially unaffected by any changes in movement
in value of the United States dollar against other
currencies. Results of the analysis as presented
in the above table represent an aggregation of
the effects on each of the Group entities’ results
after tax and equity measured in their respective
functional currencies, translated into Hong Kong
dollar at the exchange rate ruling at the balance
sheet date for presentation purposes. The
analysis has been performed on the same basis
as for 2010.

MARBLEBNEXNGEEBLERA
DHETE  ABARNKRENANFREEES
REFERARNTE

BREIMIBREXZLLERNEEHZ
£ UYRAREHNAEAKERRENZS
ERMIAE MZEIASAEERNGEER
HMEINERR  BEREEARARENER
HHERDREE R AN E R IE R E
MR KRB R REMA H M
FLEEMNR)ERFAZ UM E > &
SERRETHEMEREENTMES
BTIEHBETEXITHNHEERELEX
FE - LRMIDTERBBAKEEE
BRFAREDEEBAENKRRRER
FEGNBHTE YCREEBNAT
EXREMEBTRIERZINRE - DAL
BT -FERAMAER -
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27.Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

d) Currency risk (continued)

Renminbi is not a fully convertible currency. All
foreign exchange transactions involving Renminbi
must take place either through the People’s Bank
of China or other institutions authorised to buy
and sell foreign currencies.

e)

Fair values

i)

132 RoadShow Holdings Limited

Financial instruments carried at fair value
HKFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures,
requires disclosures relating to fair value
measurements of financial instruments across
three levels of a “fair value hierarchy”. The
fair value of each financial instrument is
categorised in its entirety based on the lowest
level of input that is significant to that fair
value measurement. The levels are defined as
follows:

— Level 1 (highest level): fair values measured
using quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical financial instruments

— Level 2: fair values measured using quoted
prices in active markets for similar financial
instruments, or using valuation techniques
in which all significant inputs are directly
or indirectly based on observable market
data

— Level 3 (lowest level): fair values measured
using valuation techniques in which
any significant input is not based on
observable market data

At 31 December 2011, the only financial
instruments of the Group carried at fair value
were available-for-sale debt securities of
$80,872,000 (2010: $82,470,000) (see note
17). These instruments fall into Level 1 of the
fair value hierarchy described above.

Annual Report 2011

7. BEREERAABE W

d)

e)

E¥ERE)

ARBEWIEAIZTEEHLBRNE, - FTE
BRAREHINEXZH L ERBHEA
RIRITHEMEREE BINSHB BT o

DREE

)

BAREBEI KRNI A
(BERUMBBRESEAIETRI2# T
A HEIZEREIBIARBEER
REIBREEHRIANAABES
E-RESRIANAABERBRE
HZAREBEFAEBAEARENRES
RBAEETHE REZRAAEN
T

- F1REEER)  KAEFRSR
TEMEEMSHRECREHE)F

ENAREE

- F2f RARABSRTAER
MEREXKBABEEGH AES
ERIEERRBEAIBEEMSHEN
ERMTENAAEE

- FIR(HEFR)  KAEFREER
BABYFERBEABEDSBIEN
MERTENRAER

E——F+-_A=+—0 K~&£E
EBEIENE—S@ T E AR #
75 3% %4 80,872,000 T (= & —
T £ 1 82,470,0007C ) (R P 5£17) °
BEBR LA R BESREREN

> A

W E

>N

J

=

o

Wy EE
A o
H

X
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27.Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

e) Fair values (continued)

f)

ii) Fair values of financial instruments carried
at other than fair value
All financial instruments carried at cost or
amortised cost are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as
at 31 December 2011 and 2010 except as
follows:

1) Amounts due from/to ultimate holding
company, fellow subsidiaries, subsidiaries
and investee of the Group and the
Company are unsecured, interest-free
and have no fixed repayment terms.
Given these terms it is not meaningful to
disclose their fair values.

2) Unlisted available-for-sale equity interest
of $Nil (2010: $23,570,000) does not have
a quoted market price in an active market
and therefore its fair value could not be
reliably measured. It was stated at cost
less impairment losses at the balance
sheet date.

Estimation of fair values

Fair values of listed available-for-sale debt
securities are based on quoted market prices at
the balance sheet date without any deduction for
transaction costs.

7. BEREERAABE W

e)

f)

DREEE)

i) WHBEAREBEINRYEBIEY AR
EE
FTERi AN B AT RS/ T A
BREER T ——FR T —FTF+=

A

=t HNAABEEETANEE

SRR - HET BIFRRSL -

1)

%W/§H$E@&$“ﬂm?ﬂ
ZRAE - H%W% B A
AREERER Eﬁﬁﬁﬁ %
E&ﬁlm%ﬁ% 00 F K
o BRBEOABEERTKA

2) FEMABHERESTT(ZT—
T : 23,570,000 7T ) I £ E BT
BWE WMEARBETENTHERT
2 EREE R AR EREE
B3R -
DAAREEMGE
FHAHLEERBELFN AR BENRE
REZBRHROTHSHRE (L RDBR S K
R)ETE °
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28. HEKB QT
NEBEE-_T——&S+_A=+—HBILEE &

28.Disposal of subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the
Group disposed of its entire equity interests in Expert E@EHEERExpert Plus» EBERMESD
Plus, Shanghai Yingte and Shanghai Yafei at a Ry 2k RER1EZT  HERABES
consideration of US$1, equivalent to $8. JC °

Assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries on the date RHEBHNHNBAREEREBRENT ¢
of disposal are as follows:

$°000
Fr
Fixed assets BEEE 221
Other receivables and deposits HithEW R R ES 341
Bank deposits and cash RITERRRSE 2,337
Other payables and accruals HthEFIRARESER (565)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFHE 2,334
Non-controlling interests IE 12 IR FE (1,115)
Net assets disposed of HEEEFHE 1,219
Reclassification of exchange reserve upon HEMBARBERTEN
disposal of subsidiaries B R (751)
Loss on disposal HEERE (468)
Cash consideration received EWEBEEERE -
Less: cash of the subsidiaries disposed of W HEMNBARNRE (2,337)
Net cash outflow in respect of the disposal of HEMBATMNES
subsidiaries R (2,337)

29, 7&iE
a) BAEE
R-T——&+-A=+—0 ~A£EH
THREERATEESBNERAEYF

29. Commitments

a) Capital commitments
At 31 December 2011, the Group had the
following capital commitments in relation to the

purchase of fixed assets not provided for in the R ImRNIELEE -
financial statements:

2011 2010
$’000 $’000
T Fr
Contracted for ERIERE - 30,191
Authorised but not contracted for BMEBMRETENE 111,006 111,006
111,006 141,197
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29.Commitments (continued)

b) Operating lease commitments

c)

At 31 December 2011, the Group’s total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases in respect of property and
equipment are payable as follows:

29. & )
b) K&EHERE

RZZE——F+_A=+—H8 X5ER
BEBEOMRERENIAEHKEHER
MHARRKERSBBLT

2011 2010
$'000 $'000

Fr Fr

Within 1 year —FR 9,618 5,861
After 1 year but within 5 years —FHRBEFR 17,880 12,823
27,498 18,684

The Group leases property and equipment under
operating leases. The leases run for an initial
period of 1 to 5 years, with an option to renew
the leases when all terms are renegotiated. The
leases do not include any contingent rentals.

Other commitments

Certain exclusive licences to (i) conduct
media sales management services for BUS-TV
business, (i) to conduct media sales agency and
management business on selected bus shelters,
and (i) to solicit advertising business in respect of
the interior and exterior panels of buses operated
by The Kowloon Motor Bus (1933) Company
Limited (“KMB”) and Long Win Bus Company
Limited (“Long Win”) have been granted to the
Group, and the respective licences will expire
in periods ranging from 2012 to 2014. Under
such licences, the Group has committed to pay
licence fees or royalty fees at a pre-determined
percentage of the net advertising rental received,
subject to a guaranteed minimum amount. The
future minimum guaranteed licence fees and
royalty fees are payable as follows:

c)

AEERBELEHEHBMELRRE - B
ENFPREB—ZEZERF UAREFERSE
HicmmED - HETEEEAERES -

E AR
AEBBEET() AR LEREBIRER
BEEERRE () AREELEESR
HEBEEREREEES - & (i) RO
B+(—hZZ)ERAATAE]) REE
B+AERAA(HEDFLEENEL 2 S
FRERE S NGRS T RS LB
SHE SORTERNT -2 ——4%
—T BRI RIS DS
AEBEARRAEREESAS RN
ABEEAHBNBEFERINE K2
FRERBSEFRR - ARBERBEH
BREAEFNEMDT -

2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Fr Fr
Within 1 year —FR 98,276 131,034
After 1 year but within 5 years —FHERFRA 23,000 121,276
121,276 252,310
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30.Employee retirement benefits 30. BB RIKE A

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund REBERBEEE(CEASERE S ENEH ) AE
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong REB(EBKODMEFNERERLBEMED
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance BatE([REERTE]) - RESFTEIRTEHE
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of 1 FOEAREE  HEVEAREETE - RIEA
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF T3  EXrREEEHAELEENES
Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan EEWU\S%E’M 2 MEBAERABRARNLRA
administered by independent trustees. Under the MPF 20,0007T ° FHEIMR T EIRSE

Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of
monthly relevant income of $20,000. Contributions to
the MPF Scheme vest immediately.

As stipulated by the regulations of the PRC, the m%q:l,ﬂﬁ REFZBEHBEEARRD TN B
Group participates in employee pension schemes NN I BRERNEEERKRSTE - K&
organised by the local governments under which the EfEIEENT

Company’s subsidiaries are governed. Details of the
schemes of the Group are as follows:

Contribution rate

Administrator Note Beneficiary AR E
EEA Bt FmA 2011 2010
Shanghai Social Security Fund Management Centre (i) Employees —% 22%
EEmHERRESEEHL (=]
Beijing Social Security Fund Management Centre (ii) Employees 20% 20%
TETHERRESEERL (=35
Notes: B aE -
() Under the scheme, the Group and its employees are each () REZFTE AEEEHEER=_Z—ZFH
required to make a contribution to the scheme at 22% and )UJU BIEHBEERE %ﬁ UL 22% K 8% K 4
8% respectively of the employees’ relevant income in 2010. Ko
(i) Under the scheme, the Group and its employees are each (il REZE  AEEREESHHAELES
required to make a contribution to the scheme at 20% and AIE LB ERE20% & 8% MK »

8% of a pre-determined amount.
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31.Material related party transactions

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group
has the following related party transactions during the

NEBEEAINERRS

RAMBHRREMADARENR S REH
S REBRFABEUTEREALNRS

year:
Income/(expenses)
WA (B%)
2011 2010
Note $°000 $’000
g Tr Fr
Licence fee for conducting BUS-TV B+ EBRER
business B8 (i) (18,572) (22,068)
Licence and royalty fees paid for the HEETEERHERES
right to sell advertising space on B &R AR
transit vehicle shelters BHREFE (ii) (14,305) (14,105)
Licence fee for the right to solicit REEEHERATES
advertising business at advertising UETEEEBNET
space on transit vehicle interiors e = (iii) (11,000) (9,300)
Licence fee for the right to solicit REEEHEGIHBES
advertising business at advertising NETESFEBENET
space on transit vehicle exteriors B (iv) (57,600) (55,430)
Rental expenses HEEH (v) (7,760) (7,322)
Management fee expenses EEEMX (vi) (16,975) (16,738)
Guaranteed advertising income REESEWA (vii) 557 7,474
Service fee paid for logistic function REBREZTREE (viii) (490) (490)
Key management personnel FTEEEAEB
remuneration B < (ix) (9,503) (6,755)

Notes: i3

(i) Licence fee was paid to a subsidiary of the Company’s () BHEERENMNERLAENE L LHELE
ultimate holding company, Transport International Holdings REREZGHETELTERELSEB I T A
Limited (“TIH”) for conducting BUS-TV advertising business NAWSRBRERATNHBEFERRIZERER A T
on buses operated by KMB and fitted with the BUS-TV (8B HOHBRATINER - REXR A&
broadcasting system. The amount payable by the Group at FEftH) 3018 A5,960,000 T(ZEE —F F :
the year end amounted to $5,960,000 (2010: $5,805,000). 5,805,000 7C) °

(i) Licence and royalty fees were paid for selling advertising (i) BHRBEMNEBRENEESHANBAGES
spaces on certain transit vehicle shelters owned by a MEFREEHARE=ELEMNINNER -
subsidiary of TIH. The amount due from a subsidiary of TIH RER - EWEH BB QA ZHIE A 287,000
at the year end amounted to $287,000 (2010: amount due T(ZE—ZT & ENEHBENE AT 332,000
to a subsidiary of TIH of $332,000). IT) °

(i) Licence fee was paid to a subsidiary of TIH for soliciting (i) ®EFEBEARNEMEENES L 2B MA
advertising business in respect of the interior panels and BEUREME RN TEEEBIM
other interior spaces inside the compartments of buses %%JZ}EWEQETEQEFH o R AEEREN
operated by KMB. The amount payable by the Group at B IE A 32,000 T(=ZE—F 4 : 32,0007T) °
the year end amounted to $32,000 (2010: $32,000).

(iv) Licence fee was paid to subsidiaries of TIH for marketing, (iv) BFBEEEAMBSEN BTIREFSESRA
displaying and maintaining advertisements at the exterior BrE@ne@ntt 8 g sEEMAS
panels of the bodies of buses operated by KMB and Long NEBHBARNER - REXK - KEBEA
Win. The amount payable by the Group at the year end M)A 1,896,000 L(=F—FF : ERHIA
amounted to $1,896,000 (2010: amount receivable of £332,0007T) °
$332,000).

BABERERAR “E——FFR
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31.Material related party transactions
(continued)

Notes: (continued)

(v) Rental expenses were paid to a subsidiary of TIH for
leasing properties, audio and visual equipment, computer
equipment and software system, and furniture and
fixtures. The amount payable by the Group at the year end
amounted to $NIL (2010: $15,000).

(vi) Management fee was paid to JCDecaux Cityscape Limited
(“JCDecaux Cityscape”), a fellow subsidiary of a non-
controlling shareholder of a subsidiary of the Company,
for the provision of media sales agency services in
relation to bus shelters. The amount payable to JCDecaux
Cityscape at the year end amounted to $4,507,000 (2010:
$3,481,000).

(vii) The Group has entered into a contract with JCDecaux
Cityscape for media sales agency services provided to the
Group in relation to the bus shelters under the media sales
business. The Group shall be entitled to a guaranteed
income calculated based on the rates per panel and the
number of bus shelter panels. JCDecaux Cityscape shall
pay any shortfall if the actual income derived from the
bus shelters is less than the guaranteed amount, and the
shortfall amounted to $557,000 (2010: $7,474,000) for
the year ended 31 December 2011. The amount due to
JCDecaux Cityscape at the year end amounted to $NIL
(2010: $848,000).

(viii) The Group paid a service fee to JCDecaux Cityscape for
the logistic function provided to the Group in relation to the
bus shelters under the media sales business. The amount
due to JCDecaux Cityscape at the year end amounted to
$41,000 (2010: $41,000).

(ix) Remuneration for key management personnel, including
amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed
in note 7 and certain of the highest paid employees as
disclosed in note 8, is as follows:

NEBEEEAINERRZ @

BeE : ()

(v) AEEAHEME TERE BHRIERE
HE G GAREESERHEBHNBRARINA
EEBH -MNEXR AEEEMFNFREAST(Z
= —Z 4 :15,0007T) °

(vi) AEEMRBRHRABE L REFHEBHERER
i‘%E’M SREARAR(ESREE ) X HERE
B ZARRANRANE AR IR Hxﬂx%ﬂ‘]ﬂ
AWBAR - RFER - BN TRSREEANK
/54,607,000 (= & — & £ 3,481,0007_E

JT) °

(i) ARERBESREAASEEHABD Lx
g %%‘%%ﬁ”ﬁ%fﬁlﬁﬁTE’]ﬁ%?%’iKiﬂE
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£ 41,0007 (ZE—Z4 : 41,0007T) °
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2011 2010

$°000 $’000

Fr Fr

Short-term employee benefits BHESEF 9,443 6,704
Post-employment benefits BBRER 60 51
9,503 6,755
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32.Immediate and ultimate controlling

party

At 31 December 2011, the Directors consider the
immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of
the Group to be KMB Resources Limited and TIH
respectively. KMB Resources Limited is incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands while TIH is incorporated
in Bermuda and listed in Hong Kong. TIH produces
financial statements available for public use.

33.Accounting estimates and judgements

The key sources of estimation uncertainty are as
follows:

a) Depreciation
Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
Company reviews annually the useful life of an
asset. The depreciation expense for future periods
is adjusted if there are significant changes from
previous estimates.

b) Impairment of fixed assets

Fixed assets are assessed at each balance
sheet date to identify indications that they may
be impaired. Such indications include physical
damage of a fixed asset and a decrease in the
revenue derived from a fixed asset. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the fixed asset is estimated. The recoverable
amount of a fixed asset is based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on reasonable assumptions
that represent management’s best estimate of the
range of economic benefits from the asset over
its remaining useful life.

32.

33.

EERERRERAT

ﬁé‘:ﬁffi‘f'*ﬂ:ﬂ—*ﬁ %%ﬂt_ﬂl—‘%
EMEEEQAFREKZERRA A B AKVB
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Limited &R B R X B S e MKz - msti@ A mn
BREAMAKIEREE LT - BRIV B
REAERABALHE -

Sot b R A B
T ATREBNEEIR :

a) &
BEBEENZEBREMGAERFHNAER
EAETE - ARREBFERIEEMNARE
REH - WBEBFBELEERES - AKX
RAFNFTERSELHRE

b) BEEERE
AEEARBEEEAFEEATEEE GR
ERR - ZEPRERETEENELR

BREFTEEMELANRERD - BFE
EAEERETR AEEKETEEE
FMTWE@@°IE§F%TW@%%
BREREEFE ZEFAEEREEEY
&ﬁ?%%%ﬂﬁ#ﬁﬁ&%ﬁ% k)
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=78 /EU
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 85 R R B o

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)
(BREBET - HRBEWITE)

33.Accounting estimates and judgements
(continued)

c) Impairment of unlisted available-for-sale equity
interest
In considering the impairment losses that might
be required for the Group’s unlisted available-
for-sale equity interest carried at cost, the
investment is reviewed at each balance sheet
date to determine whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. If any such evidence
exists, any impairment loss is determined as the
difference between the carrying amount of the
unlisted available-for-sale equity interest and the
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
current market rate of return for a similar financial
asset where the effect of discounting is material.
Estimates of future cash flows from such equity
interest require significant judgement. Impairment
losses for equity interest carried at cost are not
reversed.

d) Impairment of accounts receivable and loans

to and amounts due from investee

The Group maintains impairment losses for bad
and doubtful debts for estimated losses resulting
from the inability of the debtors and investee to
make required payments. The Group bases the
estimates of future cash flows on the ageing of
the accounts receivable balance and debtors’ and
investee’s credit-worthiness. A considerable level
of judgement is exercised by management when
assessing the credit-worthiness of each individual
customer and the investee and the collectibility of
each accounts receivable balance. Any increase
or decrease in impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debts would affect the Group’s results in
future years.

34.Non-adjusting post balance sheet
events

After the balance sheet date, the Directors proposed
a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note
10(a).
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35.Possible impact of amendments, new B.EEMERBE-_ZE——F+=A

standards and interpretations issued

St-RLEFEERERNERNE

but not yet effective for the year ended Rl HERARREARENNEE

31 December 2011

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, HEAUBERERTERE  FESHMASE
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and BHETREEZE_TE——F+H=1T—81
five new standards which are not yet effective for the FRERERMET RAEFER - A%
year ended 31 December 2011 and which have not RV BEENZET RAEL  BEATHE
been adopted in these financial statements. These EAEEB BB

include the following which may be relevant to the
Group.

Effective for accounting periods

beginning on or after

RTIBEHRZ%
RN A EN
Amendments to HKFRS 7, Financial instruments: Disclosures —

Transfers of financial assets 1 July 2011
(BEBMBMELRIETRNER  [2HTHE  KE — BETHEE/ —E——%tA—H
Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial statements —

Presentation of items of other comprehensive income 1 July 2012
(BBETERDE1RNER  [HEBERZHZ2S — 2R M2EKZENEE —E--%tA-—H

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

(BERUBHEERIE R [2H LA/

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

(BBMBHEERDE0 5K - [FEHFHx

HKFRS 12, Disclosures of interests in other entities

(BRMBREERIE12 5% [RERAMLENEZ

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

(BRMBHEERIEIS  [AALEETE

HKAS 27, Separate financial statements (2011)

1 January 2015

—E-hF¥—H—H

1 January 2013

—F-=%-A-H

1 January 2013

—F-=#-f—H

1 January 2013

—g-=%-7-A

1 January 2013

(BRGEANE 27T [BUYBHE/(—FE——%) —E-=%—-H-—H
The Group is in the process of making an assessment REBEFEZFBET RIERRERERH
of what the impact of these amendments and new BREE  BRIAL  AEERREMZEE
standards is expected to be in the period of initial R R FTERIE AN B R A B R B AR R
application. So far it has concluded that the adoption RERFEMAREETK -

of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the
Group’s results of operations and financial position.

BABERERAT

—E——FEH
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

hIFMBHE

For the years ended 31 December

BE+T-A=+—-HLEE

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BET R BT T BT T BT T BET T
RESULTS ¥E
Turnover =L 371,491 325,231 196,361 148,412 134,268
Other revenue and other Hw AR EM
net income W= FEE 25,837 31,213 26,778 35,560 47,090
Total revenue LN L 397,328 356,444 223,139 183,972 181,358
Profit from operations ReEBF 79,193 61,114 36,842 42,943 38,325
Finance costs B E A - - = (300) (1,706)
Impairment loss of other HiER
non-current financial CREE
assets HEER (109,606) (110,000) (9,801) = =
Loss on disposal of HEHBA A
subsidiaries B8 (468) = - - -
Gain on deemed disposal  R{EHERE
of partial interest in NEH D ERE
associate HY Uk 2= - = 177 = 10,243
Share of (loss)/profit of FE{L B & A A
associate (B8R)/BA - = (4,544) 14,141 12,538
(Loss)/profit before BRBLA(BFR),/
taxation B (30,881) (48,886) 22,674 56,784 59,400
Income tax FiEHt (12,863) (8,269) (4,454) (7,062) (2,003)
(Loss)/profit for the year ~ AEE (FE), BF (43,744) (57,155) 18,220 49,722 57,397
Attributable to: BT
Equity shareholders of the  ZX\ 7]
Company P (48,637) (61,641) 14,016 42,615 49,620
Non-controlling interests FERER 4,893 4,486 4,204 7,107 7,777
(Loss)/profit for the year ~ ANEE (EE) BT (43,744) (57,155) 18,220 49,722 57,397
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At 31 December

R+=R=+-—8H
2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T BT T BT T BET T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥ERERE
Fixed assets BE&E 64,672 8,406 13,407 11,855 25,868
Media assets HEEE - - 372 778 1,122
Non-current prepayments  3ER B8 B 1,667 44,268 19,160 28,741 38,322
Interest in associate e N R ERE - = = 256,926 232,623
Other non-current financial HIERE SR
assets BE 80,872 219,140 231,664 = =
Deferred tax assets EERBEE 3,060 4,067 3,802 6,227 9,560
Net current assets mEBEEFE 491,540 459,873 541,335 552,215 583,822
Total assets less current EEAEBERRE
liabilities af 641,811 735,754 809,740 856,742 891,317
Deferred tax liabilities EERBEEE (81) (86) (573) (2,295) (4,047)
Net Assets EEFE 641,730 735,668 809,167 854,447 887,270
Capital and reserves BEREES
Share capital [N 99,737 99,737 99,737 99,737 99,737
Reserves fHES 530,739 628,455 703,240 742,324 782,254
Total equity attributable to 2~ 2 8] B3R
equity shareholders of bR
the Company aps) 630,476 728,192 802,977 842,061 881,991
Non-controlling interests FERES 11,254 7,476 6,190 12,386 5,279
Total Equity AR 641,730 735,668 809,167 854,447 887,270
BB ERERAT B —FER
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CORPORATE DIRECTORY
AREH

Board of Directors £ &

Dr John CHAN Cho Chak - Chairman
REZEELTARFHL - F/F

GBS, JP, DBA (Hon), DSocSc (Hon), BA, DipMS, CCMI, FCILT, FHKIoD

Ms Winnie NG - Deputy Chairman
hBEwZt - FlFE
BA, MBA (Chicago), MPA (Harvard), FCIM, CMILT, MHKIoD

Mr YUNG Wing Chung - Deputy Chairman
BoKBEE - BIF/E

Dr Carlye Wai-Ling TSUI*

RRRELRFEL

BBS, MBE, JP, DProf, BA(Econ), FHKloD, FHKMA, FBCS, CITP,
FHKIE, HonFACE, PDipCD

Dr Eric LI Ka Cheung*

FREBE TR LT

GBS, OBE, JP, LLD, DSocSc, BA, FCPA (Practising), Hon HKAT,
FCA, FCPA (Aust.), FCIS, FHKIoD

Professor Stephen CHEUNG Yan Leung*
RECRBBEAFMLr

BBS, JP, FHKIoD

Mr Alex MO Tik Sang - Managing Director
EdEkE - EFLLE

FHKIoD

Mr MAK Chun Keung
BRE A

Mr John Anthony MILLER

HEELEE

SBS, OBE, MPA (Harvard), BA (London), FHKloD
Mr Edmond HO Tat Man

fAIEX K&

MA (Cantab), MBA, FCILT, MHKIoD

* Independent Non-Executive Director
BB TEFE

Company Secretary X A#E
Ms Jo MAN Miu Sheung
Xt

ACA, CPA

Registrars R ZFME

Hong Kong &8

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712 — 1716, 17/F, Hopewell Centre,

183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
ERFRRELHELBRAA
BEERARBR18IFAMPLI7TE1712-1716 F

Bermuda B&E

Butterfield Fulcrum Group (Bermuda) Limited
Rosebank Centre, 11 Bermudiana Road,
Pembroke HMO08, Bermuda
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Closure of Register of Members
EEREROBFELTFE

For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement
to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting:
9 May 2012 to 14 May 2012 (both dates inclusive)

ARERRHERFREFASYRE L RENENTEE :
—TE-—FRAANRE-_ZE——FHATMAE
(BEERMA)

For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement
to the proposed final dividend:
18 May 2012 to 21 May 2012 (both dates inclusive)

ARERREREERIRENEINME = :
—E——FRAtN\BEE——FRA-+—H
(BREEEMBE)

Annual General Meeting RERBF K

Date & Time . 14 May 2012, 11:30 a.m.
Venue . Concord Room |, 8/F,
Renaissance Harbour View Hotel,
Hong Kong,
1 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
B HA % B c ZE——FAA+MmA
EFt-B=15
Hh B  BRBEFBERE R

EAEBESBEEN \BESE—
Dividends IR &

Interim : Nil

Final (Proposed) : HK6.11 cents per share
 HA D

REA(2H) C BRREK6.111L

Registered Office =R

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda

Principal Office =&

9 Po Lun Street, Lai Chi Kok, Kowloon, Hong Kong
BENEHXAERETNR

: (852) 2746 5200

Facsimile fBE : (852) 2744 7854
http://www.roadshow.com.hk/

Auditors ¥ ZEm

KPMG
8/F, Prince’s Building, 10 Chater Road, Central, Hong Kong

Sl R
BRRREITE10RATFARESE

Telephone &3
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ROADSHOW HOLDINGS LIMITED
BABEERERA A

9 Po Lun Street, Lai Chi Kok

Kowloon, Hong Kong

BRAESZRABERANR

This Annual Report is also available on our website:
REBFFAELAD B 2 EBRUTH :
www.roadshow.com.hk
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